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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Eastern Investments Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1 We have audited the accompanying Censolidated Financial Statements of Eastern Investments
Limited (the "Holding Company"), and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as the 'Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {(hereinafter referred as
“Consolidated Financial Statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of the reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of consolidated
affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on thal
date.

Basis for Opinion

3 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics Issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder. and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
together with the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in
paragraph of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

In case of one of the subsidiaries, “The Bisra Stone Lime Co. Limited" (BSLC), the company has
accumulated losses and net worth has been fully eroded. The appropriateness of assumption of
going concern is critically dependent upon market scenario, the debt resolution of the company, the
company's ability to raise requisite finance, generation of cash flows in future to meet its obligation
and to earn profit in future.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Consolidated financial statements,
which describe the uncertainty related to the outcome.

In case of the Holding Company,

(a) Note No. 37.1.1(a) of Consolidated financial statements describe the non-payment of Rent and
cess on land revenue amounting to Rs. 110.54 lakhs on Lawrence Property at Bauria, Howrah,
West Bengal. The said property is yet to be muted in the name of the Company.

(b) Note No. 37.1.1(b) of Consolidated financial statements describes that demand of Rs.58.45
lakhs from Additional Commissioner of Stamp Revenue, Government of West Bengal for transfer of
shares of Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd (OMDC) and The Bisra Stone Lime Company
Ltd. (BSLC) to Eastern Investments Ltd (EIL) from President of India has not been considered in
accounts, since the company contends that the said stamp duty is not applicable on it as the transfer
of shares were affected by virtue of Restructuring Scheme approved by the Union Cabinet and the
said transfer of shares took place from the President of India without any financial consideration.

(c) Note No. 37.1.2 of Consolidated financial statements states that the Company was unable to
meet the required percentage of financial income as stipulated by the RBI's Revised Guidelines for
NBFCs.

In case of one of the subsidiary companies, The Orissa Minerals Development company Lid.,

(a) The auditors of OMDC observed discrepancies between Closing balance of inventories as per
Books of Accounts as on 31.03.2024, 13M5 report for the FY 2023-24 and physical verification
report as on 31.03.2024.

In case of Bhadrasahi and Bagiaburu Mines against book balance of iron ore is 89,002.96 Mt and
70,558.62 Mi respectively whereas the corresponding i3MS (Govt Portal) record the quantity is
1,07,542.74 Mt and 98612.47 MT respectively. The differential stock of 18,539.78 MT and 28,053.85
Mt was not considered in stock valuation. As per directive of Honorable SCl, the old stock should be
stacked and joint sample for quality to be certified by IBM & DDM, Joda. This indicates material
available in site but niot considered in physical verification report. This resulting in under valuation of
closing stock of inventory which leads to understatement of Current assets in the books of accounts.

(b) The company has outstanding dividend payables of Rs. 42.42 Lacs from 2012-13 to 2016-17
including Rs. 32.34 Lacs disputed dividends and Rs. 17.15 Lacs unpaid dividends. As per Section
124 of the Companies Act 2013, unclaimed dividends for over seven years must be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund identified unclaimed dividends exceeding
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seven years (total Rs. 10.79 Lacs) have not been transferred to IEPF. This non-compliance resulting
penalty of Rs. 5 Lacs to Rs. 25 Lacs.

(c) Current liabilities to the extent of Rs. 202.60 Lacs are long outstanding, unreconciled since FY
2010-11 and are recorded as "inoperative creditors” in books of accounts. The company should
investigate the reason behind classifying these payables as inoperative. Based on the investigation
if the payables are deemed not payable the same should be written off and if payable the same
should be paid,

(d) Other Current Assets includes Rs. 2,715.14 Lacs deposited by OMDC (Rs. 2,515.14 lac on
29.12.2017 and Rs. 200.00 Lacs on 16.11.2018) with Government of Odisha towards compensation
payable under section 21(8) of Mines and Minerals Development Regulations Act, 1957 on
extraction of minerals without/ in excess of Environmental Clearance/ Forest Clearance in respect of
lease in the name of Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineers Limited (BPMEL), being operated
by OMDC in power of attorney basis. The deposit of Rs. 2,715.14 Lacs made by OMDC had been
appropriated by Government of Odisha as part payment. In view of uncertainty in getting refund/
adjustment, OMDC should have made full provision against the amount so deposited with
Government of Odisha.

Non-provision of the same has resulted in overstatement of Other Current Assets and overstalement
of profit for the year by Rs. 2715.14 Lacs.

{(e) Government of Odisha has renewed (February 2020) Belkhundi and Bhadrasahi mining leases
of OMDC upto 15 August 2026 and 30 September 2030 respectively with a direclion to execule
supplementary lease deed within three months. For execution of lease deed, OMDC s liable to pay
Stamp Duty (five percent) and Registration charges (two per cent), o be assessed as per the
Government of Odisha Gazette Notification of January 2012.

As per company's assessment, Rs. 7,427 Lacs was payable towards stamp duty and registration
charges (Bhadrasahi: Rs. 3,559 Lacs and Belkundi: Rs 3,868 Lacs). Non-provision for stamp duty
and registration charges payable to Government of Odisha towards execution of supplementary
lease of two mining lease of OMDC has resulted in understatement of Current Liabilities by Rs.
7.427 Lacs and understatement if Intangible Assets (net of amortization expenses) by Rs. 1,980
Lacs. Further, considering the life of the respective lease, current year amortization expenses are
understated by Rs. 371 lacs and Retained Earnings (Loss) Rs. 5076 Lacs.

(f} Government of Odisha has renewed (February 2020) the mining lease of OMDC namely Belkundi
and Bhadrasahi upto 15 August 2026 and 30 September 2030 respectively wilh a direction to
execute supplementary lease deed subject to availability of the requisite forest clearance.
Subsequently, OMDC applied for extension of forest clearance co-terminus with the extended
mining lease period for the above mines. Government of Odisha demanded (October 2021) Rs.
1,974 Lacs and Rs. 5,125 Lacs towards Net Present Value as on the forest land included in the
lease out of which OMDC agreed for payment of Rs. 1,808 Lacs and Rs. 5,111 Lacs respectively
and requested Government of Odisha for revision in demand. The amounts had not yet been paid
and disclosure under contingent liabilities of the company.

As per Para 4.2 of the Ind-As accounting policy of the Subsidiary Company, mining rights
comprising of NPV and related payments to Government authorities for iron ore and manganese
mines are amortized over the period of lease from the date of payment or the date of renewal of
mining lease whichever is earlier. OMDC however in violation of its accounting policy had neither
provided for the NPV due nor amortized it from the-detefrenewal of mining lease.
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Thus, this had resulted in understatement of Current Liabilities and 'Plant, property and Equipment
by Rs. 6,919 lacs. Further considering the life of the respective lease, this has also resulted in
understatement of Depreciation and Amortization Expenses by Rs. 2,387 Lacs with conseguent
overstalement of profit for the year by the same amount. The contingent liabilities has also been
overstated by Rs. 6,918 Lacs.

(g) The auditors of OMDC, on their verification of current assets revealed an overstatement of
inventory by Rs. 47.41 Lacs. This discrepancy relates to the value of coal and dolomite (located at
the closed Sponge Iron Plant since 2010) included at cost price. Management intends neither to
revive the plant nor has it established a market price for the low-metallization materials. The lack of
proper valuation before finalizing the 2023-24 accounts resulted in overstatement of inventory and
profit by the same amount.

{(h) The auditors of OMDC, on review identified receivable of Rs. 4,439 .48 Lacs from the Income Tax
department. This amount relates to advance tax, self-assessment tax and TDS on FD reflecting as
receivable since long time. This indicates its recoverability is uncertain, raising concerns about a
potential understatement of retained earnings and overstatement of current assets in the financial
statements. Some of the receivables are pending since 2006-07 which is almost 16 years old. If the
amount is not receivable, provision should be made to write it off from the books of accounts.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

5. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance Report and Shareholder Information, but does not include the Consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director's Report including Annexure to Director's
Report, CSR Report, R&D and Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and
Analysis Report, is not made available to us till the date of this report and is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this Audit Report.

Qur opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and. in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we are provided and we read the Director's Report including Annexure to Director's Report,
CSR Report, R&D and Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe actions applicable in the
applicable laws and regulations.

Page 4 af 1
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Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

6. The accompanying Consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding
Company's Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate and joint venture in accordance
with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the companias included
in the group are responsible for assessing the ability of the group to conlinue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

8 Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
arror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10} of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
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+  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are alsc responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

.  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial
staternents. including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statemenis
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;
and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information/financial
statements of the entities or the business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company included
in the consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors. such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

11. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

13, We also provide those charged with governance with a staterment that we have complied with
relevant athical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matter

14, We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of 2 (two) subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial results, whose financial information reflects total assets of Rs. 39,908.99 lakhs as
at 31 March, 2024, total revenues of Rs 17,469.42 lakhs, total Net profit after tax of Rs. 511.04 lakhs,
total comprehensive income of Rs. 383.00 lakhs, and cash inflows (net) of Rs. 84.14 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial Statements. These annual financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose audit reports has been furnished to us by the
management, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates fo the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors after considering
the requirements of Standard of Auditing (SA 600} on ‘using the work of anather auditor including
materiality' and the procedures performed by us already stated above.

15. In Case of Holding Company

(a) The Company has only one independent director on its board as on 31.03.24 but as per the section
149 of the Companies Act 2013 regarding constitution of board, every listed public company is required
to have at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent directors. Hence there is non-
compliance in this regard.

(b) Section 177 of the Act read with Rule 6 and 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules. 2014 deals with the Audit Commitiee. The Audit Committee shall consist of a minimum of three
directors with independent directors forming a majority. Since the company has only one independent
director on its board as on 31.03,24, hence, there is non-compliance of Section 177 of the Act.

(c) As required by section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the MNeomination and Remuneration
committee shall consist of three or more non-executive directors out of which not less than one-half shall
be independent directors. Since the company has only one independent directer on its board, hence,
there is non-compliance of Section 178 of the Act.

16. In case of one of the subsidiary companies, The Orissa Minerals Development company Ltd,,

(a) The auditors have identified long-standing provisions for doubtful debts totalling Rs. 1,81,50,959.45
since FY 2014-15, These provisions are continuing since more than 12 years. If the same are not
receivable it should be written off. Due to this Receivables are overstated.

(b) The company has not obtained balance confirmations as of March 31, 2024, from a substantial
number of its sundry creditors, sundry debtors and other parties. Consequently, the balances reported in
the financial statements are subject to potential adjustments based on the outcomes of balance
confirmation and subsequent reconciliation processes. Hence, we cannot comment on the same

(c) As per the Secretarial Audit Report and letter issued by Mational Stock Exchange the company has
not complied with the composition of the board.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the branch and other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements

17. As required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, and on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors as referred to in paragraph 16 above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements:

b) Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Opinion read with Emphasis
of the Matter in the Paragraphs above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other
auditors.

¢) The consclidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements,

d) Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Opinion read with Emphasis
of the Matter in the Paragraphs above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
Government Companies in terms of notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015
issued by the Ministry of Company Affairs, Government of India.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of the
Group as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure-A which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Company
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over
financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors as referred to in paragraph 14
above:

I) As per records made available to us, the Group, as detailed in Note 37 to the
Consolidated financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position as at 31 March 2024;

i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

il In case of Holding company, there was an amount of Rs. 2.27 lakhs for F.Y. 2011-12,
Rs. 1.80 lakhs for F.Y. 2012-13, Rs. 0.14 lakhs for F.Y. 2013-14 and Rs. 2.68 lakhs for
F.¥. 2015-16 totalling to Rs. 6. lated to unpaid/ unclaimed dividend which
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were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
by the Company on 25-10-20189, 26-10-2020, 31-10-2021 and 26-10-2023 respectively
but the same has not been transferred to |EPF till the date of our report.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities (“the intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11({g), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) No dividend is declared or paid by the Company during the year and hence compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company in respect
of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility, however, the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for
accounting software to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of records by
the Company. Since there is no audit trail feature, the question of tempering &
preservation of audit trail doesn't arise. However, in our opinion, proper books of
accounts stating true & fair states of affairs of the Company, as required under Sec
128(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, has been maintained by the company for the
financial year 2023-24.

In case of one of the Subsidiary (The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited)

The present accounting software of the company for maintaining its books of account gid
not have the feature of recording audit trail of each and every transactions, creating an
edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date when such
changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled as required
under the proviso to Rule 3 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,2014 Since there was no
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audit trail maintained for transactions recorded within the software for the whole year,
hence comment on any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, does not arise

In case of other Subsidiary (The Orissa Minerals Development company Ltd.)
We are unable to comment on the audit trail of Orissa Minerals Development Company

Ltd. since the same has not been reported by the statutory auditor.

18. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (the "Crder’/ "CARQ") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to
us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and other auditor for the Company and its
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, we report that qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports
are tabulated below:

‘Clause Number of
the CARO Report
which is qualified

| or adverse

| ()(b). (i)e), (vi(b) |

(i)(c), (vii)(a),
(vii)(b),

Sr. | Name CIN Holding
MNo. Company/Subsidiary/
Associate/Joint
Venture
y Eastern LB59930R1927 Holding Company
Investments Ltd. GOI034842
2 | The Orissa Minerals | L514300R1918 | Subsidiary Company
| Development G0I034390
| company Ltd
[3. The Bisra Stone L141000R1910 Subsidiary Company
Lime  Company G01033904
Limited

(i)e). (iKd). (vii)(a),
(vii)(B), (ix), (xiv)(a),

For B Chhawchharia & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 305123E

s

urav Kumar Jaiswal
Partner
Membership No.: 310588

UDIN: 2430588 mkA-AT&F8T

Place: Kolkata

Date: 24" September 2024
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Eastern Investments Limited
(Hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statement of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls thal were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary, joint venture and associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies, which are compang
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Chartered Accountants Continuation Sheet

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statementis for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directars of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statement

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries, except The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited, where, the internal audit
system is required to be improved to commensurate with the size and nature of the business, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting. The internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
considering the essential components of internal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Einancial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 2 (two) subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 305123E

Sy

Gafirav Kumar Jaiswal

Partner

Membership No.: 310588

UDIN: oy aypoag ppLATRA ST

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24" September 2024




Eastern Investments Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
Amount in RS, lakhs

Motes | As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
(2} Property, plant and eguipment i 1,415.26 | 1,3%8. 7
(b)) Capital work-in-progress 3 46.17 339,97
(¢) Investment properties - :
(d) Intangible assets S "— | = __1,854.87 | 2,091.78
3,416.30 3,830.02
(e} Financial assets ]
(1) Imvestments 5 236,95 192.00
(8) Cther investments T R 236.95 192.00
{Ii} Loans B 31.85 3r.72
{lii Cther Ananclal assets 7 911.58 1,348.22
(F} Mon-current tax assets ;] — 4, 756.04 4,503 74
(@} Deferred tax asseks {Net) 18 19,852.20 19,081.53
_{m} Qther non-current assets 9 0,53 B5.24
Total non-current assats 29,205.55 29,568.47
{2) Current assets
{a) Inventories 10 2,740.24 2.694.19
[b}) Financlal assets
{1} Cther investments 5
(i} Trade Receivables 11 B27.60 FBS.19
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 12.1 B23.44 743.85
[iv) Bank balances ather than (i} above 12.2 2,031.01 7,381.75
(v} Loans G - -
[vl) Other finencial assets 7 1,428.26 B96.81
[C) Other current sssets B = ] 457886 | 200000 471878
Total current assats 12,429.47 17,224.05
Assets claseified as held for sake 13 = -
Total assets 41,635.02 46,752,532
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - )
(1) Equity
{a) Equity share capital 14 141.90 141.90
{b) Dther equity 15 (7.678.70)] {7,951, 88}
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (7,536.80) (7,809.98)
Non-conbrodling Inderests 00 i6 (3099.86)  (3,291.31}
Total equity (10,636.66) (11,101.29)
Liabilities
(2) Nen-currant liabilities
(8] Financial labilities
(1) Borrowings 163 = .
{b) Provisions : Sy 17 1,619.77 1,557.07
() Deferred tax iiabiiities (Net) |18 502.62 617,43
Total non-current labilities 2,222.39 2,174.50
(3} Current liabilities
{2) Finanoal labilities
(i} Trade payablas
{8} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 16,72
small entreprises 19 b
&) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than migro
entreprises and small enterprises Li74s.af 2
{ii} Barrowings 15h - 17,359.82
(i Dther financial Nabllitles 20 B.O02.48 B,085,25
(b) Provisions 17 7,945.63 8,598.31
{c} Current tax labilities B 55.63 393.59
{d) Other current liabilities I 21 32,281.36 20,596.5%
Total current liabilities S—— == = T _50,049.29 _55,719.31
Total liabilities 52,271.68 57,893.81
Total equity and liabllities 41,635.02 46,792.52
Motes refarred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
In tarms of our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Figr B. Chhawchharia & Co.
Chartered Accountants b M
Firm R 3081 * Gl
; ? , Dlrtbr1p (5.C. Pandey)
_ Al) lemesrs BV Managing Director
Gaai'av Kumar Jaiswal i \ f
Partner r - I - ﬁ
Membership No: 310588 \ - -S.' ﬁ'd'- '“f
UDIN NO: 3 &y 2 ) 0 5 & & i PLA (0 Sarkar) (5 Raja Babu)
| Place: Kofhata ,24th September’ 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




Eastern Investments Limited

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended 31.03.2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year For the
Motes ended year ended
31. 31.03.2023
1 Revenue from ocperation 22 17,163.45 12,635.67
11 Other income . 23 383.07 282.78
IIT Total revenue (I + II) 17,546.53 12,918.45
IV EXPENSES
{a8) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 (47.97) [193.69)
{b) Contractial Expense 25 2, 74717 3,118.21
{¢) Royalty 26 3,132.75 2,106.47
{d) Employee benefits expense 27 4,381.81 4,430,862
{2) Finance costs 28 3,061.08 2,442 68
(f) Depreciation and amertisation expense 29 526.37 260.96
{g] Other expense . 30 3,972.23 _2,713.09 |
____ Total expenses (IV) 17,773.44 14,878.34
V Profit before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) {226.91) (1,959.89)
V¥l Exceptional Items - (87.39)
VII Profit before Tax (V + VI) ({226.91) {2,047.28)
VIII Tax Expense
{1} Current tax ER | % 210.53
(2) Deferred tax i1 (B2Z.89) {1405.44}
{3} Income Tax from earller years _3.52 36.76
Total tax expense (VIII} (819.37) (1,157.75)
IX Profit for the year (VII - VIII) 592,46 (889.53)
X Other comprehensive income
{i] ltems that will not be recycled to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gains ¢ (losses) on defined benefit plans (165.41} (196.04)
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 3758 11.84
_ orofit or loss. a x
| Total other comprehensive income for the year (X) (127.83) (164.20)
| XI Total comprehensive income for the year (IX + X) 464.63 (1,053.73)
Frofit for the year attributabie to
- Dwners of the Company 33 (649.27)
- Non-cantrolling interests 255.35 (24027
592,46 | (B89.53)
Other comprehensive Incame for the year attributable to:
= Dwners of the Company {63.93) (82,12)
- Men-controlling Interests (63.90) (82.08)
| (127.83) (164.20)
Total comprahensive Im:_ume far the year attributable to:
= Dwners af the Campany 273,18 (731.38)
- Non-controlling interests 191,45 | _(322.35)
464.63 (1,053.73) |
XII Earnings per equity share:
Basic and diluted {in Rs.} 32 23.76 (45.786)

In terms of our report of even date

For B. Chhawchharia & Co.
Charterad Accountants
Firm Regn.No: 305123E

Place: Kolkata  24th Saptember” 2024

Motes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

vﬁ\_\-\‘ Sl &i’w________ﬁ““%

{S.C. Pandey)
Managing Director

§ g bk
(5 Raja Babu)
Company Secretary

Director p
e gn > A H.uu.:rl P-,.r
urav Kumar Jaiswal \Y
Partner % “/
Membership No: 310588 ;
UDIN NO: D431 05 8R &RPCLATE (Pu Sarkar)

Chiefl Financial Officer




|Eastern Investments Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31.03.2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year|
ended| For the year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year (226.91) (2,047.28)
Adjustments far:
Cepreciation and amortisation of non-current assets £26.37 260.96
Prawieian for leave encashment written back In 2
profit or loss
Fair value galn/{loss) arging from the investment (45.01) (19:74)
classified as FVTPL
Liabilities no longer required written back 150,00 44 62
Amartisation of land lease premilum
Provigion for Impairment losses on praperty, plant .
and equivalent and intangibles
Provision for doubtful debts and advances = -
Provislon for capital work in progress =
Impairment loss recoqrised on non-financial assets - -
Interest income reccanised in profit or loss (464.19) 1459.71)
Interest expenses recogrised in profit or loss 3,061.08 2,442 .68
3,041.34 221.53
Mowements in working capital;
{Increase) / decrease In other financial assets (B2.04) (863.84)
(Increase] / decrease in other assets 224,11 (541.92)
(Increase) / decrease in loans = .
Increase) f decrease In bank balances gther than
:::a-gh & E,a]'i;r'l equlvaients 5,350.74 5,884.36
{Increase) [ decrease in Inventories {46.05) (195.18)
Increase [ (decrease) In trade payables 1,078.44 {74089
(Increase) [ decrease In trade recelvabies (38.47) (163.100
[ncrease | (decrease) in other financial liablities (82.77) (450,40}
Increase / (decrease) in other Habities 11,684.77 13,555.68
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (545.40) {2,037.47}
Cash generated from operations 20,204.67 14,668.76
Income taxes paid [28.72) [(446.06}
Met cash generated from operating activities 20,175.88 14,222.70
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of financial assets 0.07 -
Payments for property, plant and eguipment [112.65) 1.27
Praceeds from disposal of property, plant and eguipment - .
Interest received from banks and others 437.19 529.65
Payments for Intangible assets * -
Proceeds/(payments) on sale/{purchase) of financial &
assers and investments
Met cash generated from investing activities 324.61 530.92
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest on Borrowings (3,061.08) (2,442.68)
Repayment of Bormowing {17,359.82) (15,976.25)
Met cash used in financing activities {20420.90) (18418.94)
Ehh:t increase or (decrease) in cash or cash equivalents 79.59 (3,665.33)
|Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 743.85 4,409.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year | 823.44 743.85

In terms of our report of even date

For B. Chhawchharis & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No: 3051238

|

rav Kumar Jaiswal
Pariner
Membership No: 310588

UDIN NOi Sly= ) 0 SRS By SLAT £98

ﬂu: Kollata  24th Sap 2024

Forand on behall of Board of Direciors

n Sarkar)

(5. I.‘. Pumlﬂr]
_ Managing Director

[ 2T bably

{5 Raja Babu)
Company Secretary

ancial Officer
3
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Eastern Investments Limited

' Eastern Investments Limited (hereinafter referred as "EIL” or “The Company “or "The

holding company”) together with its subsidiaries the Orissa Minerals Development
Company Limited (hereinafter referred as “"OMDC") and The Bisra Stone Lime
Company Limited (hereinafter referred as “BSLC") are referred as "The Group”. The
holding company is classified as Union Government company and is registered at
Registrar of Companies, Kolkata. It was nationalized by the Government of India by
virtue of the Bird & Company Ltd. (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertaking and other
Properties) Act, 1980 and it became a PSU w.a.f 19th March, 2010, it is a shell
company, $0 not classified by DPE. EIL is listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange. The
Company had alsobecome a subsidiary company of RINL (Rashtriya Ispat MNigam
Limited) on 5th January, 2011.

The consolidated financial statements of the -Céhpany have been prepared in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013,

The consolidated fimancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS
notified under the Companies Act {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

Up to the year ended 31 March, 2018, Eastern Investment Ltd. had prepared its
consolidated financlal statements In accordance with the requirement of previous
GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) |
Rules, 2006. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1% April,2018,

In Case of Eastern Investment Limited no new Ind AS was introduced or no revision to
any existing Ind As has been made before 31% March, 2020,

As the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified IND-AS - 116 -"Leases”
from Financial Years beginning on 1% April, 2019, superseding the IND-AS -
17-"Leases”, OMDC & BSLC adopted IND-AS-116 from the Financial Year
commencing on 1% April, 2019 using the modified Retrospective approach for
transitioning to IND- AS - 116.

Frior to adoption of Ind AS , the Group had been preparing its consolidated financial
statements for all periods up to and including year ended 31 March, 2018 in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the India, including
accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rule 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP"). The financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019 and the year ended 31% March, 2020
are prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per Group's
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule-11I of the Companies Act 2013,
Based on the nature of business, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of Current-noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company has adopted all the issued Ind Ass and such adoption was carried out in
accordance with IND AS 101 - First Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.
The Company has transited from Indian GAAP which Is its previous GAAP, as defined
inInd AS 101.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis,
except for financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Ind AS Accounting Policies
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Eastern Investments Limited

" Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services,

Fair value s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardiess of whether that price Is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosures in
these consclidated financial statements Is determined on such a basis, except for
share based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 - Share
based Payments, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 - Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value In use in Ind AS 36 -
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value '
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or llabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date; [

Level 2 inputs are Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

| The principal accounting policies are set out below. o
1.2.3 Basis of | The consolidated financiel statements Incorporate the financial statements of the
Consolidation Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

» has power over the investee,
* s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
and

s has the ability to use its power to affect its returns,

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has
power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give It the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

» the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

« potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

= rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company ocbtains control over the

subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are

Ind AS Accounting Policies
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Eastern Investments Limited

included in the consolidated statement of profit and less from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
incame of subsidiaries s attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting peolicies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All
intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/ and supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

itial
The initial cost at cash price eguivalent of property, plant and equipment acquired
comprises Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition
and location and present value of any asset restoration obligation or obligatory
decommissioning costs for its intended use.

Expenditure Incurred on development of freehold land is capitalized as part of the cost
of the land.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in

| construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing

costs.

Subseguent expenditure on day- to- day servicing of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. However, expenditure on major
maintenance or repairs Including cost of replacing the parts of assets and overhaul
costs where it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
be available to the Group, are capitalized and the carrying amount of the item so
replaced is derecognised.

Insurance spares that are specific to a fixed asset and valuing mare than Rs. 1 lakh
per unit are capitalised along with the main assets. All other spares are recognised as
inventory, except for spares which are having a useful life greater than a year and can
to be Identifled as components in an asset are capitalised.

Capital work-in-progress

Assets in the course of construction for production orfand supply of goods or services
or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are included under
capital work in progress and are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Cost includes professional fees and for qualifying asset, borrowings costs capitalised in
accordance with the group’s s accounting policy. Such capital work in progress is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed or starts operating as per management’s intended use.

Caosts associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalised where the asset is
available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until a period of
commissioning has been completad.




Eastern Investments Limited

Depreciation on assets is provided over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on
assets is provided on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset in the
manner prescribed under Schedule I1 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each year end, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Each
component of an itermn of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is material in
relation to the total cost of that item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs
from the others components of the asset.

Property, plant and esquipment which are subject to componentisation, comprises of
main assets, componentised assets and remainders, if any. The useful life of
remainders carry the life of main assets unless the same based on technical evaluation
is considered to be lower than that of the main asset, in which case, such lower useful
life is considered,

The residual value of property, plant and eguipment are maintained at 5% of the
original cost except for assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 which are fully depreciated in
the year of capitalization.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and eqguipment is
prospectively depreciated over the revised useful life of respective assets,

The estimated range of useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings 30 -60
Plant and machinery 8- 15
Railway Siding, pipelines 15
Motor Vehicles 8
Furniture and fixtures 10

| Computer 3-10

Electric Machinery & Plant and General Electrification 10
Water Supply and Sewerage System 5-12

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciated assets on property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation
thereon are retained fully until they are derecognised or classified as non-current
assets held for sale.

Disposal of assets
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment Is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Stripping cost
In open pit mining operations, overburden and other waste materials must be
removed to access ore from which minerals can be extracted economically. The
process of removing overburden and waste materials is referred to as stripping.
During the development of a mine (or pit), before production commences, stripping
costs are capitalised as part of the cost of construction of the mine (or pit) and are
subsequently amortised over the life of the mine (or pit) on a units of production
basis,

Stripping costs are allocated and included as a component of the mine asset when
| they represent materially improved access to ore provided all the following conditions




i Intangible

Eastern Investments Limited

are met;
(a) It is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the stripping
activity will be realized:
(b) The component of the ore body for which access has been Improved can be
identified; and .
(€) The costs relating to the stripping activity associated with the improved access
can be reliably measured.

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is allocated
to the existing mine asset to the extent the current period stripping cost exceeds the
stripping ratio,

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated on a unit of production basis
over the life of the identified companent of the ore body that became maore accessible
as a result of the stripping activity and is then stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Stripping costs include such activities as removal of vegetation as well as diaging the
actual pit for mining the ore.

Ind AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of
all its property, plant & equipment recognized as of 1% April, 2018 (transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as
of the transition date,

t I
Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets having finite useful life are
amaortised over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
Is incurred,.

An internally-generated Iintangible asset arising from development {or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if all of the
following have been demonstrated:

+ the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;
the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The group has not recognised any internally-generated intangible assets,

The costs of mining rights includes amounts paid for afforestation and wiid life
conservation as determined by the regulatory authorities are capitalised as “Mining
rights” in the year in which they are incurred. Cost of pre-production primary
development expenditure other than land, buildings, plant and equipment are
capitalised as part of the cost of the mining property until the mining property is

Ind AS Accounting Policies




Eastern Investments Limited

capable of commercial "ﬁ;nﬁuctlon, Capitalised i'nihiﬁﬁ hmr:nertigs are amortised on a
unit-of-production basis over the total estimated remaining commerdal reserves of
mining property and are subject to impalrment review.

nditur
Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred after the group has obtained legal
rights to explore in a specific area such as exploration and production licenses,

researching and analyzing historical exploration data, exploratory drilling, trenching,
sampling and the costs of commercial feasibility studies.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest is capitalised when
the expenditure is expected to be recouped from future exploitation or sale of the area
of interest and it is planned to continue with active and material operations in relation
to the area, or at the reporting period end, the actlvity has not reached a stage which
permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of commercially recoverable
reserves. In all other cases such expenses is charged to profit and loss.

Purchased exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at their fair value at
acquisition.

As the capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure asset is not available for
use, it is not depreciated. All capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is
monitored for indications of impairment. Where a potential impairment is indicated, an
assessment Is performed for each area of interest or at the CGU level. To the extent
that capitalised expenditure is not expected to be recovered it is charged to profit and
loss.

Administration costs that are not directly attributable to a specific exploration area are
charged to profit and loss. License costs paid in connection with a right to explore in
an existing exploration area are capitalised and amortised over the term of the permit.

When commercially recoverable reserves are determined and such proposed
development receives the appropriate approvals, capitalised exploration and
evaluation expenditure is transferred to capital work in progress. All subsequent
development expenditure of underground mines is similarly capitalised, provided
commercial viability conditions continue to be satisfied. Proportionate cost of product
extracted during the development phase is netted against development expenditure.
Upon completion of development and commencement of production, capitalised
development costs are further transferred to Mining Reserves, Resources and Rights
and depreciated using the unit of production metheod,

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
The estimated useful lives for the main categories of intangibles assets having finite
useful life are as follows:
(a) Acquired computer software is classified as intangible assets and carries a
useful life of 4 years.

(b) Mining Rights comprising of NPV and related payments made to government
authorities for iron ore and manganese mines are amortised over the period
of lease from the date of payment or date of renewal/ deemed renewal of
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mining lease whichever is earlier.

For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of
its intangible assets recognized as of 1% April, 2018 (transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/ or for capital |

appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes). Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, Investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's
requirements for cost model, other than those that meet the criteria to be classified as
held for sale (or are Included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in
accordance with Ind AS 105.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

| derecognised.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control,

| Investment in joint ventures are accounted for at cost.

le

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss {if any). Where It is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time walue of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

[1.29 Provisions
| and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or canstructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable ("more likely than not”) that it is required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

Ind AS Accounting Policies
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The amount recognised as a8 provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows. The discount rate used.is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money in that jurisdiction
and the risks specific to the liability.

(a)
An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
arises when environmental disturbance is caused by the development or
ongoing production of a mine and other manufacturing facilities. Such costs,
discounted to net present value, are provided for and a corresponding amount
is capitalised at the start of each project, as soon as the obligation to incur
such costs arises. These costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
over the life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the
unwinding of the discount on the provision. The cost estimates are reviewed
periodically and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have
an impact on the cost estimates or life of operations. The cost of the related
asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated
cost estimates, changes to lives of operations, new disturbance and revisions
to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively
over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the
discount is shown as finance and other cost in the statements of profit or lass.

(b) Envi
Environment liabilities are recognised when the group becomes obliged, legally
or constructively to rectify environmental damage or perform remediation
work,

(<) Litigation
Provision is recognised once it has been established that the group has a
present obligation based on consideration of the information which becomes
available up to the date on which the group’s consclidated financial statements
are finalized and may in some cases entail seeking expert advice in making
the determination on whether there is a present aobligation.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities arising from past events the existence of which would be
confirmed only on occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group or contingent liabilities where there
is a present obligations but it is not probable that economic benefits would be required
to settle the obligations are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements unless
the possibility of any cutflow in settlement is remaote,

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence

will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future

events not wholly within the control of the Group of companies. Contingent assets are

disclosed In the financial statements when inflow of economic benefit is probable on

the basis of judgment of management. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date

and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. Contingent assets are
| disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefit is probable.

| On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind |
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AS 116 has become effective w.e.f. 1 April 2019, which eliminates the classification of
leases as either finance or operating lease as required by Ind AS 17, Leases. Ind AS
116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. The Group of companies would be recognizing a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability in its balance sheet. Apart from the
balance sheet, statement of profit & loss of a company would also underge a change
as operating lease expenses will be bifurcated into depreciation on the right-of-use
asset and interest expense on the lease liability. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS
116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind
AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual period beginning on or |
after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

» Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented
applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

Modified retrospective = Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial
application.
Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability
as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

e Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement of the date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate at the date of initial application or
* An amount egual to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized
under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.
Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the group
of companies is proposing to us the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach’ for
transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained
earnings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly,
comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2019 will not be
retrospectively adjusted, The Group has elected certain available practical
expedients on transition.

Applicabili

This standard applies to all leases, including leases of right-of-use assets in a
sublease, except for:

(a) Leases to explore for or use minerals, cil, natural gas, and similar
non-regenerative resources;
(b) Leases of biological assets within the scope of Ind AS 41,
| Agriculture, held by a lessea
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(c) Service concession arrangements within the scope of Appendix D,
Service Concession Arrangements, of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts
with Customer

(d) Licenses of intellectual property granted by a lessor within the
scope of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Rights held by a lessee under licensing agreements within the scope of
Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets, for such items as motion picture films, video
recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights
MNote: A lessee may, but is not required to, apply this Standard to leases
of intangible assets other than those described in above point (v)

Below conditions need to be fulfilled if the contract is to be classified as lease:

Identified asset.

Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits,

Lessee directs the use,

Thus from the above classification, the standard under IND AS 116 cannot be
made applicable for the OMDC & BSLC as the main purpose of the business is
exploring minerals or similar non-regenerative resources.

Intangible Assets do not cover items such as motion picture films, video
recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights and there is no such
contract where asset has been identified against economic benefits.

Hence IND AS 116 could not be made applicable in FY 2023-24.

Inventory of raw material, stores and spares are valued at cost net of CENVAT ! VAT
credit wherever applicable. Cost is determined on moving weighted average price on
real time basis.

Inventories of finished goods, semi-finished goods and work in process are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost |s generally determined at mowving
weighted average price of materials on real time basis, appropriate share of labour
and related owverheads. Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all |
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale,

Provision is made for old/ obsolete/ surplus/ non- moving inventories as well as other
anticipated losses considered wherever necessary.

Where physical stock is more than the book stock, book stock is5 considered for
valuation of stock, However, surplus stock is valued at Rs. 1 per LOT for the surplus
stock available as on the date of closing.

The excise duty payable on closing stock of finished goods at the time of sale is not

considered in valuation of clesingstock. N
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services

performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expect to be collected

within a period of 12 months or less from the reporting date for in the normal

operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets

otherwise as non-current assets.

Ind AS Accounting Policies
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| Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a material |
financing component in accordance with Ind AS 18 (or when the entity applies the
practical expedient) or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract,

__Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognised on initial recognition.

1.2.13 Financial | All financial assets are recognised on trade date when the purchase of a financial asset |

Instruments

is under a contract whose term requires delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets which
are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) at inception. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value,

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified as ‘equity instrument’ if it is a non-derivative and meets
the definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer (under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation). All other non-derivative financial assets are 'debt instruments’,

Deb inruments are
are met:

+ the asset is held within a business mcdel whose objective is to hold assets In
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amaount cutstanding.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment, with interest recognised on an effective
yield basis In investment income.

Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI If both of the following conditions are met;

+ the asset is held within a business medel whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flaws and selling assets; and
the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising on measurement recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated
using the effective Interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in
investment income, When the debt instrument is derecognised the cumulative gain or
loss praviously recognised in other comprehensive income Is reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment.

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments other than held for trading
purpose at FYTOCI,

A financial asset is held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
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on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument
or a financlal guarantee. )

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. Where the asset is disposed of,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is directly reclassified to retained earnings.

For equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income no
impairments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends on these investments in eguity instruments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in investment income when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured raliably.

Other Financial Assets (Contract Assets)

Accounts Receivables is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services,
transferred to the Customer. If the Company performs by transferring the goods or
services to a Customer before the Customer pays consideration or payment is due,

Accounts Receivables (in the nature of Contract Asset) is recognized for the Earned
Consideration that is conditional.

Fi ial ts at FVTPI

Financlal assets that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive incomedescribed above, or that meet the criteria
but the entity has chosen to designate as at FVTPL at initial recognition, are measured
at FVTPL.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group
designates an investment that is not held for trading at FVTOCI at initial recognition.

Financial assets classified at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value excluding
transaction costs.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on measurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The net
galn or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss Is Included In the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVWTPL is included in the net gain or loss
described above.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.,

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables are classified as subseguently
measured at amortised cost. Trade and other receivables which does not contain any
material financing component are stated at their transaction value as reduced by

Ind AS Accounting Policies
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impairment losses, if any.

Loans and other receivables are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate (EIR) methad.

Impairment of financial assets

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance for expected credit loss is
recognised for debt instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCL. For debt instruments
that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income in the statemeant of profit and loss and does not reduce the carrying amount of
the financial asset in the balance sheet.

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is measured in a way that reflects:

= an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes;

= the time value of money; and

« Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

At each reporting date, the Group assess whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased materially since initial recognition.

When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable
and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of material increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
materially since Initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, If, the
credit risk on that financial Instrument has increased materially since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial assat
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained Interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a

transferred financial asset, continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecegnition, of a financial asset other than In its entirety (e.g. when the Group
retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the

Fad Co o
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previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part It continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
gther comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

in ial liabilities i
. ificati et i

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity inst l

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabllities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other
financial liabilities'.

Fi 1 liabiliti

Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liability is either held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may alsc be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

= such designation eliminates or materially reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping Is provided internally
on that basis; or

It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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remeasurement recognised In the statement of profit and loss, except for the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and-oss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability.

Other fi ial liabiliti
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Trade and other payables are recognised at their transaction cost, which is its fair
value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,

| insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and In hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifylng assets are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. The Group considers a period of
twelve months or more as a substantial period of time.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of

| profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that we will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the group recognizes as expenses the related costs far
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants whose primary
condition is that the group should purchase, construct or otherwise acguire non-
current assets are recognized in the balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred
income,

Other government grants (grants related to income) are recognized as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as

. compensation for_axpenses or losses already Incurred or for the purpose of providing
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immediate financial support with no future related costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and |oss in the period in which they become receivable.

Grants related to income are presented under other income in the statement of profit
and loss except for grants received in the form of rebate or exemption which are
deducted in reporting the related expense.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no |legal or constructive obligations
ta pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out for half pay
leave at the end of each annual reporting period? The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of government bonds. In countries where there is a deep market
in high-quality corporate bonds, the market rate on those bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation are used. However, for
retirement benefits like gratuity the provision is made on the basis of 15 days of salary
(i.e. Basic + DA) for the month of September (i.e. 15/26 x (Basic + DA) for the month
of September). This amount of provision is for the entire year and is recognised
propartionately in every guarter whereas for superannuation fund the provision is
recorded on a monthly basis, which is calculated @ 15% of Salary (i.e. Basic + DA) of
gach month. These are charged to statement of profit and loss at the end of each
period.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to
the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected In the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income Is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not
be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

« service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains

and losses on curtallments and settlements);
« net interest expense or income; and
* remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs In the statement
of profit and |oss in the line item employee benefits expense. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

When the benefit of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit
relating to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expenses is recognized
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

[ ides retiring benefits in the natur rovident fund, superannuation
and gratuity to its employees.
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Obligations for ggut[lhu;mu to gr‘nvldgn; ﬁund and super: supe @u wation fund are cl assified
as defined fined benefit
plans,

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises
any related restructuring costs. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

In the case where the acceptance of reguests made by employees under the scheme is
at the sole discretion of the Group, the expenditure incurred on acceptance of the

request is charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which it is
incurred.

=ter -term empl

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Other long-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued aver the period of employment using the
same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit retirement plans. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

The Group Is providing benefits in the nature of compensated absences to its

_employees which are classified as other long-term employse benefits,

Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax,

Current tax Is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Subject to
exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all
temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes:

» tax payable on the future remittance of the past earnings of subsidiaries where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future:
and
deferred tax assets are recegnised only to the extent that it is more likely than not
that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income Is
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recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and not in the statement of |
profit or loss,

Deferred tax Is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences
at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred Tax Assets include Minimum Alternate Tax {(MAT) paid in accordance with the
tax laws in India, which likely to give future economic benefits in the form of set off
against future income tax liability. MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is
adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over
Income Tax treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of
taxable profit ( or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates, when there is uncertainty over Income Tax treatments under Ind AS 12,
According to the Appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the
relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that
the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be
considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax
treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - (i) Full retrospective
approach - Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and (i)
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by
adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual period beginning on
or after April 1, 2019. The company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 without
adjusting comparatives. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be
immaterial in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes,

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where
the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after
April 1, 2019. The company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on
the cansolidated financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 19 : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs Issued
amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan
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' amen&Fnents, curtailments and settiements,

Revenue

The amendments require an entity :

= To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest

for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement; and
To recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously
recognized because of the Impact of asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after

April 1, 2019, The Group does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenues are reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when centrol is
transferred to the customer. Revenue from sale of goods is measured based on the
transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and pricing
incentives, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customer. GST is not recelved
by the company for its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on sale on behalf of the
Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from Revenue.

The group derlves revenue principally from sale of limestone and dolomite.
The group recognizes revenue when all the following criteria are satisfied:

(i) material risks and rewards of ownership has been transferred to the customer;

(ii)there is no continuing management involvement with the goods usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold has been
retained;

(iii} the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(iv) It Is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the group;

(v)recovery of the consideration is probable; and

Revenue is inclusive of royalty, taxes on royalty and other amounts charged by State
Government like district mineral foundation and National mineral exploration trust, but
exclusive of sales tax, value added tax, welfare cess, entry tax, liquidated damages
and penalties, If any.

Income from dividend and interest and rents

Dividend
Dividends income from investments is to be recognised when the right to receive the
dividend is established.

Interest

Interest income from a financlal asset Is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal

ocutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
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| discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financlal
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Clairns are accounted for in the statement of Profit and Loss based on certainty of
_their realization.

1.3 Critical accounting judaments and key sources of estimation UHGETIE'IHI!:

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management
of the Group is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

1.4.1 Crtical judgments in applying accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (see note 4.2 below),
that the management have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

1.4 1.1 Financial assets at amortised cost:-

The management has reviewed the Group's financial assets at amortised cost in the light of its
business model and has confirmed the Group's positive intention and ability to hold these financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows. Details of these assets are set out in Note 32.

1.4.1.2 Provision for Restoration and rehabilitation of mining sites:-

Provisions are recognised for costs associated with restoration and rehabilitation of mining sites as
soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. Such restoration and closure costs are typical of
extractive industries and they are normally incurred at the end of the life of the mines. The costs are
estimated on the basis of mine closure plans and the estimated discounted costs of dismantling and
removing these facilities and the costs of restoration are capitalised when incurred reflecting the
group's obligations at that time.

A corresponding provision is created on the liability side. The capitalised asset is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss over the life of the asset through depreciation over the life of the
operation and the provision is increased each period through unwinding the discount on the
provision. Management estimates are based on local legislation and/or other agreements. The
actual costs and cash outflows may differ from estimates because of changes in laws and
regulations, changes in prices, analysis of site conditions and changes in restoration technology.

1.4.1.3 Ore reserve and mineral resource estimates

Ore reserves are estimates of the ore that can be economically and legally extracted from the
group's mining properties. The group estimates its ore reserves and mineral resources based on
informationcompiled by appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological and technical data
on the size, depth, shape and grade of the ore body and suitable production technigues and
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recovery rates. Such an analysisrequires complex geological judgments to interpret the data. The
estimation of recoverable reserves is basedupon factors such as estimates of foreign exchange
rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements, andproduction costs along with geological
assumptions and judgments made in estimating the size and grade ofthe ore body.

The group estimates and reporis ore reserves under the principles contained within the guidelines
issued by the Indian Bureau of Mines (IBM) — including:

« Future production estimates — which include proved and probable reserves, resource estimates
and committed expansions;

As the economic assumptions used may change and as additional geological information is
produced during theoperation of a mine, estimates of reserves may change. Such changes may
impact the group's reportedfinancial position and results which include:
« The carrying value of exploration and evaluation assets, mine properties, property and plant and
equipment may be affected due to changes in estimated future cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation charges in profit or loss may change where such charges are
determinedusing the units of production method, or where the useful life of the related assets
change;
Capitalised stripping costs recognised in the Balance Sheet or charged to Statement of Profit or
Lossmay change due to changes in stripping ratios;
Frovisions for rehabilitation and environmental provisions may change - where changes to the
reserveestimates affect expectations about when such activities will occur and the associated
cost of these activities: and
The recognition and carrying value of deferred income tax assets may change due to changes in
thejudgments regarding the existence of such assets and in estimates of the likely recovery of
such assets.

1.4.1.4 Deferred siripping expenditure

The group defers stripping (waste removal) costs incurred during the production phase of its
operations. Thiscalculation requires the use of judgments and estimates relating to the expected
tons of waste to beremoved over the life of the mining area and the expected economically
recoverable reserves to be extracted asa result. This information is used to calculate the average life
of mine strip ratio (expected waste to expected mineral reserves ratio). Changes in a mine's life and
design will usually result in changes to the average life ofmine strip ratio. These changes are
accounted for prospectively.

1.4.1.5 Production start date

The group assesses the stage of each mine under construction to determine when a mine moves
into theproduction stage. This being when the mine is substantially complete and ready for its
intended use. The criteriaused to assess the start date are determined based on the unigue nature
of each mine construction projectsuch as the complexity of the project and its location. The
groupconsiders various relevant criteria to assesswhen the production phase is considered to
commence. At this point, all related amounts are reclassified from “*Mines under construction "to”
Froducing mines” and/or “Property, plant and equipment’. Some of the criteriaused to identify the
production start date will include, but are not limited to:

+ Level of capital expenditure incurred compared to the original construction cost estimates;

« Completion of a reasonable period of testing of the mine plant and equipment;

« Ability to produce material in saleable form (within specifications); and

» Ability to sustain ongeoing production of material
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When a mine development/construction project moves into the production stage, the capitalization of
certain mine development/construction cosis ceases and costs are either regarded as forming part
of the cost ofinventory or expensed, except for costs that qualify for capitalisation relating to mining
asset additions orimprovements, underground mine development or mineable reserve development.
It is also at this paint that depreciation/amortization commences.

1.4.1.6 Uni I ion depreciation

Estimated economically recoverable reserves are used in determining the depreciation and/or
amortization of mine specific assets. This results in a depreciation/amortisation charge proportional
to the depletion of theanticipated remaining life of mine production. Each item's life, which is
assessed annually, has regard to both itsphysical life limitations and present assessments of
economically recoverable reserves of the mine property atwhich the asset is located. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions, including theamount of recoverable
reserves and estimates of future capital expenditure. Numerous units of production (UOP)
depreciation methodologies are available to choose from.

1.4.1.7 Mine rehabilitation provision

The group assesses its mine rehabilitation provision at each reporting date. Material estimates and
assumptions are made in determining the provision for mine rehabilitation as there are numerous
factors thatwill affect the ultimate amount payable. These factors include estimates of the extent and
costs of rehabilitationactivities, technological changes, regulatory changes, cost increases as
compared to the inflation rates and changes in discount rates. These uncertainties may result in
future actualexpenditure differing from the amounts currently provided. The provision at reporting
date representsmanagement's best estimate of the present value of the future rehabilitation costs
required

1.4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a material risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

1.4.2 1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

As described in note 2.4 above, the Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each reporting period.

1.4.2.2 Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation.

Ind AS Accounting Policies
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Eastern Investments Limited
Hotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 - Property, plant and eguipment
Amount in Rs. lakhs

. As at As at
Eareing- Amosn: 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Freehold land 11.10 11.10
Leasehold Land L6009 162.06
Buiidings 922.86 8931.79
Roads 12.30 12.30 )
Furnitung and fixtures 14.81 14.33
Plant and eguipmeant 150.11 155.59
Etettical instatlation 20,13 21.54
Block & Development 1,01 1.01
Wehicles 059 0.589
33 KV 11KVA substation 2.96 .96
Rallway sidings 12767 85.64
Computer 6,52 10.17
Total 1,430.15 1,413.16
Less ; Provision for impairment 14.89 14,89
against aguisition cost of asset ] !
Total property, plant and
|equipment (Net) 1415.26 1,398.27
Cost
Particulars As at Additions Deletion/ P
01.04.2023| 99ing the |Adjustments 31.03.2024
year far the year
Frizehold land 11.10 : . 11.10
Leasahgld Land 1896.77 = * 196.77
Bulldings 1,501.28 1483 1,516.17
Roads 24605 = = 244605
Fumniture and fixtures 119.63 0.59 - 230.62
Plant and aqguipment 3,430.54 1.34 - 3.432.28
Elictical installation 346.28 0.24 - 346.52
Block & Deveippment 1.01 - - 1.01
Wehicies 74.90 . = .50
33 KV 11KVA substation 55,44 - . 58.44
Hallway skdings 643.38 49,95 . 593.34
Computar 05.23 o.20 * 96.50
Total 6,837.17 52,73 14,89 6,904.79
I..HT t Fru'n!mn for impairment 14,60 s 4 18,89
PPE [ Net) 6,822.28 52.73 14,89 5,B89.90
Deletion/ Depreciation, Amartisation Carrying Amount {Rs.)
Particulars AL Bt :“u:'l"t;utl:; n:j.w“:u Py Ais ok Ag st
01.04.2023 year for the year 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024
M-_hu.and = - i = 11,10 11.10
Leasahoid Land .71 1.87 - 35.68 162.06 160,09
Buildinigs 560,48 23.83 . 593,31 231,79 92286 |
Roads 233.75 - - 233,75 12,30 12.30
Furniturg and fixtures 215.30 0.51 . 215,81 14,33 14,81
Flant and equipment 3,275.35 6.82 - 3,282.17 155.50 150.11
Electical installation 3340 1.68 . 326.39 21.58 2013
Biock & Development - - + - 1.01 1.01
‘wehicles 74,31 . - 14,31 0.59 0.59
33 EN) 1LEVA gubsmation 5648 = & 56 40 .96 2.96
Railway sidings 553.70 11,97 - 565.67 82.68 137.67
Computer BE.22 3.92 (0.07) 20.07 10.17 6.52
Total 5,424.00 50.71 {0.07) 5,474.64 1,413.16 1,430.15
Less : Pravision for Impairment = = = =
|against aguisition cost of asset e b
PPE [ Net) 5.424.00 50.71 {0.07) 5,474.64 1,398.27 1,415.286
2.1 EIL:

2,1, 1Tha company has continued with the carrying value of its Property, Plants and Equipments{PPE), Tangible Assets,
recognized &s on April 1, 2018 (Lrangition dabe) measured as per the pervious GAAP and used that carrying value as its
deamed cost as on the transition date,

2.1.2. Consequent upon the acquisition of the urdertakings of the dissolved companies under the scheme of
amalgamatien, tha company acquired under noted landed properties which are in the process of trensfar in LS own name,

21,2 {8} Land




The Lawrence Investments and Frogerty Co. Ltd. had & landed property of 76.77 Acres of lend al Chachkasi, Bauria,
Howrah, housing (ts Jute Mills (demolished and dispased of in 1980). The Government of West Bengal had acquired land
measuring an aporoximeate ares of 27.58 Acres on 25,08.76. Company's appeal for award of compensation towards such
mcquisition has been upheld by District Judge, Howrah on 07.03.83,

The balance portion of the land however, 1§ under enauthorised occupation of local Inhabitants which includes
cortruction of parmanent nature , as well. Necessary corresgondences have slready been made with the concermned
authorities tagethar with lodgment of complaint with the concerned police station for eviction of unauthorised gccupants.

2.1.2 (b} Block and Development Sanepore Property

The Assats described under the heading '‘Block and Development’ known as Sonegore property belonging te the Ondal
Investrments Co. Lid, wera the sulbject matter of a sub-lease between them and Sonepore Coalfields Ltd, which the
company took possession of the property In 1948, The sub-legse agreement could not be completed due to impligabions
ieglved unger the Mineral Concessign Rules in 1960, The sald company served re-entry notice on the sub-lessaes and
an ebtaining permission from the Coal Board took possession of the praperty and slarted prospecting operation for which
purpase the sum of Rs. 0,72 lakhs wes spent. The Company’s re-entry notice was challenged by the Sonepore Coalfields
Ltd. &nd in lanuary, 1956 after hearing both the parties the Calcutta High Court held that the sub-lessees were the
‘owners' of the property and re-entry permission granted by the Coal Board should be quashed. The said company
praferred an appeal but the same was decided against them in 1970 and the matter was forwarded by the Court to the
Conl Board for fresh decision. Mo development has taken piace since then, Amount of Rs. 2.56 lakhs was also received
fraen Business Davelopment Corporation Ltd. In the yeasr 1948 on sccount of sub-lease of the Mowjas '"Hassadin’, 'Jote
Khan Khan', "Kabagram® & ‘Sonepore’, pending finalizatian of the sale deed and the final outcome of the re-entry case,
this amount has been kept under Current Liabllities', "Development’ represents” the expenditurg incurred towards the
develogment of a property, the possession of which is under dispute,

.1.2 {c) Buildings

The Sullding belenging to the Sendra Investments Co, have been teken over in January, 1973, by the Coal Mines
Buthority in terms of Coal Mines | Nallonalisation) Act, 1573, A ckaim for compensation for take-over has bean made. No
adjustrnent has been made pending determination of the caim,

2:1.2 (d) Raliway Siding

The Railway Siding known as 'Chora Mangaipore Siding' belanging to Ondal Investments Co. Lid. stretchas over
approximately three miles taking off from Sonachora Station lying between Ondal and Garandih, Foliowing the

nationaltzation of Non-Coking Coal Collisrses in 1973, all the collieries arcund the siding have been taken over by the
Coal Mines Authority though the ownership of the Siding rests with the sakd company.

2.1.2 (#) Cepreciation on Block & Development~ Ondal Property, Building - Sendre Property have neither been
ascertained nof provided for.

2.1.3. Title deeds of Immovable Properties not hald in name of the Company

Whether title
deed holder is
i prometer,

Title deeds director ar

Grossearrying| | inehe | relutivedof Property held | Reason for not being held in the

Deseription of item of property value {

akhs) name of  [promoter®/dir| since which daie aaiwe of the commpiiny
Company ector or
emplayee of
promoter dire
ctar
As per EIL, the Compary had a land of

TE.TT ieres in the name of previous
Company, Out af this , the Govy of
) West Bengal had scquired 27 58 acras
Frgehbld land 2,18 S H e on 25.08.1976 under the proveions of
section G{1] of West Bengal Estates
Beguisition Act'1953

2.2 BSLC:

2.2.1 Machiniery sparg-parts which can be used only in connection with an itam of floed essets and whose use, as per technical assessment, is
oxpected to be rregular are capitabzed and depreciated over the residual life of the respective assets.

1.2.7 Expenditure incurred for obtaining required clearance to operate the mines subsequant to the allotment of their lease s caphabized as
intangitsle assels & amortised over the useful life.

7.2.3 The supplementary lease deed of Birmitrapur Limestone and Dolomite Mines of M/s Blsra Stone Lime Company Limited having Mining
Lease area of 793,043 Hectares was executed on 18,12, 2015 and registered on 30.03.2016 for period of 01.03.2000 to 3L.03.2020. Further
Govt.of Odisha has extended the validity period for another 20 years with effect from 01.04.2020 to 31.03, 2040 vide letter Mo. [1H{LD}5M-
TF/P013-3249/5M dated 30.03.2020 for tha area 793.043 Hectares [Non Forest Argn). The supplymentary lease was executed on 26:06.2020 and
registerad 30.06.7020. Out of 793.043 Hectares the surface right area for mining and allied activities area 571.121 Hectares.

Feasons for not
Chpoas ‘Whether promoter | Period held being held in
Descelption of |Carrying Director or thelr |indicate range, |name of the
2.2.4 Free Hold Land Propecty SRR IR Lice ol PR where Company also
lakh) Indicate if in
dispute
S
\Z




Free hold lande
of 16,04 Acres

BG4

Various seiler

Her

Acqurired threagh
sale deed prios 1o
EOTE and
Company
poAseESion sinos

1936

Mutation is
pending. All
Mutstlon cases
are pending at
District
Magistrawe
Collector,
Sundargarh,
Crdisha, Due w
fact that sale
deeds pre
execuled prior Lo
1978 for which
miitation cannat
be allowed by
Tahasildar dues
to lnck of
Jurisdiction.

Free hold lands include land of ares 8,37 acres having Gross value of Rs.0.46 Lacs where the right , title and possession
vest with the company, however some disputes has been raised by the earstwhile legal heirs of sellers of such land,
which is pending before the different courts,

.3 OMDC:

2.3.1 Machinery spare-parts which can be used only in connection with an itern of fixed assets and whose wse, as per technical assessment, is
expected to be irregular are capltalizved and depreciared over the residual life of the respective assets,

.31 Leasahold Properties | land) has bedn shown as carmying cost for the balance amount 33 on 31.03.2024. Degreciation has been charged
over the Lease period 1.e. 99 yaars on SIP Leased.
1.3.3 Total Free Mold Land of 206 865 Acres has been included under Land out of which 3.023 Acres are | the name of OMDC, 3.910 Acras in
the hame of Bird & Co., 3.393 Acres has been encrosched by OMDC and 196.539 Acres in the name of BPREL.

2.3.4 Title Deed of Immovabie Properties not held in name of the Company
Relgvant line ivemm in the Balance|Description of|Gross  carrying| Title deeds Whether tithe doed|Property hald since| Reason  for  not
Sheet Item of property |value held in the holder is promoter, |which date being held in the
rarme al director o relative & name of the
of  promater company **
director or|
AmiLin Laih
PPE Lamd BPMEL 196.53% Acre - No 1981
Land Bird & oo, 3510 Acre - No 1991
LB
Land Encratchment 3.353 Aore -« No 1391
Land oM %023 Arre 1991
3  Copital work-in-progress
3.1 omMDC amt. In Lakhs
Asat 31.03.2024 As st 31.03.2023
Capital work=in-progress 339.97 41545
Add: Addition during the year. 45,01
Less: Capitalised during the year 50,00
Less: impalrment Ioss on capital work-in-progress recognised inprofit and loss 288.91 75.48
Tetal capital work in progress 46.17 339.97
Cwie Amount in CWIP
Leds than 1 year 1=3 years -3 years Mare than 3 years Todal
Progect in Progress 1345 1346
Fromcts temporarily suspended 2.7 nn
CWIP To be Compieted
Less than 1year 1-1 years -3 years Igre than 3 years. Toal
Project 1 13 46 13.45
[Project2
3.1.1 Capital work-in-progress includes other floed assets 1o be installed and unfinished construction and erection materials,
3.1.2 Balance shown a3 Rs.370.52Lakh after conslaenng writeolf of provision of Rs.42.930akh.
3.1.3 Building , Road, Riy. Siding and other permanent seructure constructed on mining lease have been degreciated as per the rate proscribed in

Schedule - 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 and not ammortised over the mining lease perio

O




Eastern Investments Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 - Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs, lakhs

" . As at As at

YR WG 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023

Prospecting and development - -

Mining rights 1,954.87 2,091.78

Computer softwares = S

Total property, plant and

i TRE 1,954.87 2,091.78

Cost
Deletion/
Particulars As at :::::ﬂnt:fn Adjustments As at
01.04.2023 Egr during the | 31,03.2024
Y year

Prospecting and development 150.67 - = 150.67

Mining rights 12,093.40 79.89 - 12,173.29

Computer softwares 3.49 = - 3.49

Total 12,247.56 79.89 = 12,327.45

Less : Provision for impairment . . :

against aquisition cost of asset

PPE ( Net) 12,247.56 79.89 - 12,327.45

Deletion/ Depreciation/ Amortisation Carrying Amount
Deletion/
Particulars As at :;T;“i:i Adjustments As at As at As at
01.04.2023 “‘-’.‘r during the | 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023| 31.03.2024
year

Praspecting and development 150.67 = " 150.67 = -

Mining rights 10,001.62 216.80 - 10,218.42 2,091.78 1,954.87

Computer softwares 3.49 = 3.49 - -
Total 10,155.78 216.80 - 10,372.58 2,091.78 1,954.87
Less : Provision for impairment 3 2 A y
|against aquisition cost of asset |
PPE ( Net) 10,155.78 216.80 - 10,372.58 2,091.78 1,954.87

Motes:
4.1 OMDC

4.1.1 Addition of CWIP includes expenditure incurred for Stripping cost Over Burden Removal (OBR) cost wrt. Baglaburu Mines.

4.1.2 Prospecting and development expenses incurred to prepare the mines ready for commercial exploration (i.e. in the nature of

preliminary and preoperative expenses) are capitalized.

4.1.3 Expenditure incurred for obtaining required clearance to operate the mines subsequent to the allotment of their lease is
capitalized as intangible assets under the heads Mining Rights on deemed extension basis. Intangible Assets has been ammortised taking
the validity of mining lease upto 30.09.2030 for Bhadrasai Lease, 15.8.2026 for Belkundi Lease and upto 10.10.2041 for Bagiaburu Lease.

4.1.4 Expenditure towards Stamp Duty & Registration fees for all the three mines except Bagiaburu Mines of OMDC has not been
provided, since the liability for payment has not yet been crystallized for want of EC, FC and execution of supplementary lease deed and
demand not raised by Govt. of Odisha as on 31.3.2024 and shown under Contingent Liability. Cemand Motice in respact of Bagiaburu
Mines has been raised by Govt. of Odisha and shown under addition. Necessary ammortisation will be made after payment and

execution of supplementary lease deed,

= g2




Eastern Investments Limitesd
Matas to the Consofidatad Financisl Statements

5 IAvEsments
o curramt
3.1 Dther invastmants

Men-currsnt

(7) Quoted imyestments of Fais Value 5 %
a) Investments in equlty instruments (sl fully paid)

Amsunt b Qe lakie

As @b 31033024 As et 31.03.2023

H.OFC Bank P PP
LT.C. Limited [Orsmany Shanes of e 1] - sach] !g,'; T
DFSE L3d (Formaily DUShergarm Pavwe Supply Co. L1d.) CI— e i
Eren! AushzAry of India Limites . = PR
100 Frarcal Serves Limitad 063 =
Rieltance Indusiries Limited e P
EEML LAND ASSETS LIMITED } nEl
Barat Lanth Mevers Uimited. By .51
Tha husesiated Chitinie Cormady Liitted, 18,10 b7
“Wooeana Mullspadality Rospial Limites = == B 018 ot
— TEW Umitad (fermarly, Jindak Vijaynapar Stael) 0.8 s
Pt 2 Swvbecd Tervmatpvenin i g ty bt oomiic{ 1) — oo
T —_——
MALEET Shad - LA Trukt of [ndia 1,88 Lt
Capital Grvth Unit Sohems 1902 (Meste Cain 19 .33 ,I*
Total - guoted nvestmants in mutusl funds (b} = el 7.9
B Total - guoted non-current mysstments {iza+b) . 11650 19188
ljl; i e s I Pt
) Irymstmants bn equity instrumeate (all fully peid) B
Titagarh Wages Limitod (Foermiaty TIRagam ndustriss Limibd]s ABRE e
lpat Profiles Lirveed * .06 .06
~ Emsfern hews Paper|Formaly Chora Investment Coo Lka.] = o e
The Burmakur Coal Company Limited [dn Liguidatiang anET o
" The: Kinnison Jute Féis Compery Limted = — P
) Unign Jube Compary Limied 2505 05
w
Kumardhipi Fireciay & Silica Works Limaed =09 000
Ralman Climas Mariinctareg Umiced * 2.58 258
East india Minerais Limited i1 10 BLID
_ Mangs Camamd Limited — A 0.2
T ANz Cormpany Lirmined 57 P
B T b B i ——— e o
" Sijun {Therrigh] Eleciric Supgly Company Lmizd. * 91 o
Tatal - unguoted invest in equity instruments (a) 436.27 436,39
b} Investments in proference sharcs of coml — —
7% Birds Jute B Exports Limited * . -
55 Kumardnubi Fireciay B Siiica Wores Umited {2nd Freference)® 0.52 [EH
0. 5% Kumardhulli Ergorsring Works Limited # h08 n.a%
 Total - unguuted investments in preferance shares (k) L L
5} Inessimants in debantures ot cost = — e
3% Kumandhubi Engingaring Works Limited * BdF. O
Tousl - uRGOUEE iAvEFIMENTS N debenAtures (C) 0.ar 0.27
~ Total - unguoted non-current investmants (=8 +bic) aares a3y
Total - other non-current investmunts [[1)+(1i}] L 4872
_AddEtional infermation
A ol g Aot market relun thereat () I __LBAAY
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments {il] 437 55 437.77
Aggragate ami of kmgairmant in vabue of t_l?-lli — 43772

e et i

4.2 Category-wisa other Investments - a8 per ind 85 108 ciasaification

Forancal ssets mandsorty camed B ks vl through prefit o icss (FYTPLY
Trancal ssei mandsiocy caried ol Amorised cost

Lena: Agcregse amoun! ol mosrmsset in valus of morkiments

Tl

32

Az “.?1".1!7‘_”.@' . Asat 35033097
191,085
ﬂ.?as #3777

e




l.la___umwaun;mumgntﬂim‘ Limitng
o i WY 5 200 s a3
Piemia f Aremmimuerm
3 o Sharmy, Minrkt ki M ol e Mlurket i lun
W Fuir Vakan
Masier Boare « Uret Trasl =F moa ml 134 — iBh
nwmumsnnum#mr,u!mr m1 . 1000 e
L e — = - - =
Ti-hnaﬂnul;mﬂn-nmum an 547 118
WWeacdend Btepecialty mospmal L © sa o - o oid
BEML LAND ABEETS LIMITED ELd me S5
e Bt Morsers Limdes 0 283 04 T
0 Firarcil Gendces Lamited 172 oo 17 (31
Patanes ket Limies 3 172, i 172 v
Stanl fisherty o inda Limiing 1o o Vo0 ™
RS Ty ——— 14 machy 2400 e P aaa1
i ) 1san) iz vy P
45 W Lamiia (larmerty Ll viinager S P 018 n .58
hmhﬂumnmmum
mwmmmmmmm &5 1858 B 1848
bt Frofles Limagg - s P e .
tmh%wﬂmmh Ly " B0 dra nm o
T Bumils Coal Compary Limiad o Lquaasan - ave 300y ey 475 3000 anar
The: Wianison Jutr Mils Comparry Limeg © g on ar frree arer
nian sy Camptny Lirnfied © Ianze.0s an08 14028 80 mo
Fumirshuts Fruckiy § Shoa Warks Lsreiad © 148764 B0 2008 18754 2008
rraman Cange berutadtieny Lonies - 1235600 BEE 3350 20 EEL
Tmmmhm-umh-ﬂ‘ THESE 00 Ly TH,E50 05 an
ks Lun & trgus Limang - 8030 a8 450,50 T
T [hemint) Emchs Supply Gompany Linned. - Tioas e Tmze ™
Ivesimants in groturence Shar valud o Sont
T Bros Juw & Excorts Lmieg 130 A 100 ars
5.3% Famardhuti Fiwciay & Sibce worty Liied [ Fraiersrca T i PR e
B 5% Hurmehuly' Enginesrng Wors Limase - e o s aaa
_M" i debmntruy valesd ar Cont
ﬁmmmquLm' Ho bar smop I
5.4 Dutnils of cther | ulmm-lmhm-pumn-d
Won- Current Invastmants Amaunt s, in Lakhe
A w108 3% Bt WL BRS04
- P el T Wk Wakus o ool Thaves Blarkni viaiag ]
Non-current
inguoted Investments
mm_;m:whr Instrements {ali fully paid mhares of As 10 Bach)
Srl Asronindra Sabayog Saeniy Limibas H =l i L]
Kalinga Cerruest Limited® o 0.12 6onn =
Tre Sljua (Iherish) Eectnc Supply Lo, Lo, 100 100 il
Quated Investments
Woodiand Multispaciatty Hospital Lmand sen| [ 500 o5
5.5 Details of othar investrant of Grisea Hinsng Devalopmant Carporatien .iﬂnnt B8, in Lakkhs
Paniculgs A un 1108 7023 A9 FLOL 200
| {Ner-Currant] Mo of Ehare arsan Vihie HE of thasey Mtaraat vl i
Unquoted Investmants
Investmants in Inwm{-mmﬁmﬂh“m}
Enss indis Hirsral Limited 2811010 FLINT] AL DD 28210
The-Sijua (rerrish) Elnctnc Sugply Co. L1g 100 5/ (e 100, 61 (1K
Quated Investments
th-:mnnltp \sospiral Limires S00.00 08 [T | o.04]

5B Tra undwiniongs of the lolowing companies hava Baen mker ove by e
Comsmymme -

(@) Birdl & Company Limetad

(2} Dehagars Pensr Suppiy Company Levied [Birar Lnt

AE] Fannian Jute Mils Company Limied

ol

G D810, 2013, wivestment gri I has Béen shown as Shar liresemant, Irvestrans in Wiy

Sappty Compeny Lid, Putst 8130 Cadwn oegyidend for

ihe adeets of M/s East Indin Mrmerats Ly,
s e privided fefy &5 the I¥ agresme
Hirigital Lirsted and The Sus {Jarrias] Elsetric

[EIML), Tha

Supired
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Eastern Investments Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 - Loans

Non Current

As at

As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

( Loans to employees

Unsecured, considered good 31.95 37.72
{ Loans to others
Unsecured, considered doubtful 7.24 7.24
Gross other financial assets 39.19 44.96
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful loans
(i) Loans to others (7.24) (7.24)
(i} Loans to employees = -
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful loans (7.24) (7.24)
Net other financial assets 31.95 37.72
Current
{ Loans to employees
Unsecured, considered good -
Other financial assets = -
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful loans
Total allowance for bad and doubtful loans - -
Net loans e e
Notes
The financial assets are carried at amortised cost,
6.1 Movement in amounts of provision for bad and doubtful loans
Amount
Rs, in lakhs
Balance as at 01.04.2023 7.24
Addition/(Reversal) (0.00)
Balance as at 31.03.2024 7.24
o,
)
4



Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in Rs. lakhs
7- Other financial assets

Non-current AS Aw at
 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

{28} Term deposits with banks with maturity of more than 1 year - S
Secured, considered good 842,50 _1,279.50

(B} Security deposits
Unsecured, consldered good 69.08 58.72

[c} Other receivables
Unsecured, constderad good - =

Unsecured, considered doubtful 1:15 1.15
Gross other non-current financial assets 912.73 1,349.37
Less; Allowance for bad and doubtful other financial assets
(8} Jther receivables & {1.15) [1.15)
Met other current financial assets 911.58 1,348.22
Current As at As at

R 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

{a8) Security deposits and earnest money deposits
Unsecured, considersd doubtful 163.77 164.11
tb)  Term deposits with banks with maturity less than 1 year 692.07 207.77
[c} [Interest accrued on
(1)  Term deposits : -
Unsecured, considered good 447 .67 420.67
(2] Other investments
Unsecured, considered good . -
Unsecured, considersd doubtful 0.12 0.12

{d) Other receivabies

{1} Amount receivable from related party
Unsecured, considered good 21.54 18.20
Unsecured, considered doubtful -

(2} Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good 72.28 55,13
Unsecured, considered doubtful 50.95 50.95

(3 Rent receivables
Unsecured, considered good -

Balance with bank agianst gurantees

(e) and other commitments 30.53 30.53
{f) Amount recoverable from empioysees -
Gross other financial assets 1,479.33 947,88
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful other financial assets
(2} Security deposits and earnest money deposits - .
{b) Interest accrued on other Investments {0.12}) {0.12})
[c} Dther recelvables = -
1 Crther Receivable {50.95) {50.95)
2 Amount receivable from related party £ = - h
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful other financlal assets (51.07) {51.07)
MNet other current financial assets 1,428.26 B96.81

7.1 The financial assets are carried at amartised cost.
7.2 Movemaent in amounts of provision for bad and doubtful other financial assets

ﬁ‘"‘:ﬁ"& Interest
“rll: Bkt accrued on Other
money other receivables
Aananit investmants
Balance as at 01.04.2023 - 0.12 52.10
Addition/(Reversal) - = =
Balance as at 31.03.2024 = 0.12 52.10

7.3 EIL- For dues from directors / KMPs - Refer Note 36.
7.4 BSLC - The Anancial aseets are carried al amortised cost

\i\‘w/- '

il

25




Eastern Investments Limited

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 - Tax assets and tax liabilities

A. Tax assets

Amount in Rs. lakhs

MNon-current s Aa at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(a) Advance income tax

__Unsecured, considered good 4,756.04 4,933.74
Total non-current tax assets 4,756.04 4,993.74
B. Tax liabilities

c t As at As at
b 31.03.2024 _ 31.03.2023
{a) Income tax payable
___Unsecured, considered good 55.63 _393.59
Total current tax liabilities 55.63 393.59

"
4



Eastern Investments Limited
Noves to the Consclidated Financial Statements

Amount in AS. lakhs
9- Othar assets

ol xl.u:.:;j :t._u.;;st
()  Cagital aovances 48,85 75,39
(b} Agvance with public bodies -
{1} Customes, Exeise, Sa%s Tax , Part Trusld ete - 57,94
[g]  Prepaid lease payments - - .

(i) Prepend lease payments cost

(ay Prapaid expenses towasds empioyes koans ! =

(L) Acvanca to wandors 0.05 0.26
Total non-current other assets 48.50 133.61
Lass: Aliowance for bad and doubtful non financial assats

() Capial sdvarces — {48.37) {48.37)
Total provision for bad and doubtiul non financial assets (48.37) (48,37}
Net non-current obher assets 0.53 BS. 24

Classification of other non-current assets:
Secured, considered good i .
Unsecured, considerad good .53 B5.24

Doubtful 48.37 8,37
Gross non-current other assets 48.890 13381
As at As at
ot 31.03.2024  31.03.2023
(&l Advances
{11 #sgvances Do empoyees 34:12 26.69
[} Advamces to suppliers &nd service providers 211.39 126,95
fii} Advances 1o reiated panty - =
{iil} Other Bdvances 1,892,111 3,347.36
(o} Pregaid axpenies 0.24 14.04

(€} Prepaid loase payments. ¥
(I Prepaid lease payments cost :

(d} Prepaid expenses towards amdaloves Inans 1.70 1.58

&) Others 1,648 72 1,428.16
Total current other assets  aFBEIR  4,046.19
Lass: allowanca for bad and doubtful non fMinancial assels

(I} AdvbAced

(@) ACvaRoes [0 SURCESars and service prowiters {B0.33) {60,33}

[b) Advances Lo relatsd party - -

{b] Gther advamces {s48.09)  (167.50)

* Total pravisien for bad and doubtful non financial assets (209.42) [227.93)

Met current other 4,578.86 4, 718,26

Classification of curcant other assets: ———
Secured, considered good -

Unsacured, condidered good 4, 578,86 4,718, 6
Doubitful e = 209.42 227.53
Gross current other assets &, TE6. 28 &, 946.19
1 Mowernent in amaunts af provisen foer bad and doutful other assets Amount in RE. lakhs
Capital lm.li"::'uh:i Other Advances to
advances '""“"mm Advances  related party
Balance as at 01.04.2023 48.37 60,33 LE7.60 -
Addition/ | Reversal) - - {18.51) -
Balance as at 31.03.2024 48,37 50,33 149.08 =

OMDC- Dther Advances of Rs.2753.56 Lakhs Includés Rayalty Advance of{Credit Balance) Rs. 7157 Lakhs, Input Tax
Credit of G5T of Rs. 149.10 Lakns, paymant of advanoe with protest amounting Rs. 2.715.14 Lacs to DDM, Jods against
compensation of exoess mining for BPMEL Leases a5 per the Order of Supreme Court dated 02,08.7017. OHDL was
operating the BPMEL Mines upto 2010 and extréctes the minteraly under the Power af Attorney. OMDC k& the bereficial
ownar of the leases. The right of the lgases in the name of OMOC s continucusly being contested. The issue of BRREL
Leases is subjudice. Pendng finslity of the case in the Court of Law of BPHEL Mines [which is a liguidated company), in
the Court of Law, the paymenl made under protest on Bemall of BFMEL Mines of Rs.2715 Lac 5 shown shder advance.

L)

9.3 OMDC -Prepaid expenses towards emgloyes |oans répresents diference amount betwesn actual iterest charge fram
i emplayee and notiomal interest at 8 Standard Rabe of 9.25% for Motes Vehicle Loan and B.55% far House Building
Advanges. The said amount would be ammartised over the pericd of loan amaunt

9.4 BSLC - Others under current incluses Royalty on meneraiofl s, 164, 16 Lacs regresents the balance af he excass gayments
besng the ddferental amount of Royalty deposited betwean the permission guantity applied for and actual quantity
desgaiched over o perigd of years .Whale of the above amount & either refundable or adjustable asgaingt future Royalty
paYMENS,




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Amount in Rs. lakhs
10- Inventories
(Lower of cost or net relisable value)

. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Raw materials 47.41 47.41
(b) Finished goods 2,533.50 2,485.52
(c) Stores and spares 159.33 161.26
Total inventories 2,740.24 2,694.19

Note:

10.1 The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 1.2.11 of Accounting Policies

10.2 : OMDC was operating the BPMEL Mines upto 2010 and extracted the minerals under the
Power of Attorney. OMDC is the beneficial owner of the leases. The right of the leases in the
name of OMDC is continuously being contested. The case of BPMEL with OMDC is subjudice.
Hence,the stock lying in the area of Kolha Roida, Thakurani and Dalki of BPMEL (which is a
liguidated company) have been valued by OMDC and taken into its books of accounts,

10.3: In case of Bhadrasahi and Bagiaburu Mines against book balance of iron ore is 89,002.96
Mt and 70,558.62 Mt respectively whereas the corresponding i3MS ( Govt Portal) record the
quantity is 1,07,542.74 Mt and 98612.47 MT respectively. The differential stock of 18,539.78 MT
and 28,053.85 Mt was not considered in stock valuation » Since as per directive of Honble SCI,
the old stock should be stacked and joint sample for quality to be certified by IBM & DDM, Joda.
Hence these differential stock is not considered for valuation,

10.4: Similarly, in case of Thakurani and Belkund mines the book stock of Iron are is
1,77,337.34 Mt whereas the corresponding (3MS ( Gowt Portal) record the quantity is
1,64,818.30 MT. Difference is due to sudden stoppage of mining activity in the both mines
resulting non-updation of i3MS portal .

10.5: In case of Manganese ore , valuation of the stock has been made on the basis of third
party Stock Verifier . It is observed that in case of Bhadrasahi (3335.62 MT), Thakurani
(14,417.553 MT) and Belkundi ( 5503.617MT) , the Mn stock as per i3MS record ( Govt Portal),
the stock of 458.53MT, 2845.494Mt and 4866.27Mt are recorded. The required corrections will be
made in i3MS,

10.6 : Valuation of Inventory has been made based on Average Sales Price published by IBM and
cost price which ever is lower. IBM Price for the month of Feb, 24 has been taken except 35%-
46% and 46% Mn. and above. For 35%-46% and 46% Mn. and above, the IBM Price of 35-46%
for the month of Feb,2024 has been taken for valuation,

g‘/
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 - Trade receivables
Amount in Rs, lakhs

Ag at As at
N
on Current 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Trade receivables
(8] Unsecured, considered good - -
i} Relnited Party 3 =
ii| tHhers - -

(b} Unsecured, considersd doubiful - =
1) Related Party - .

if] [thers . =

Less; Allowance for doubtful trade receivables {expected credit
leis allgwiance)

" Trade Receivable which have significant incrase in credit
Tisk

(d} Credil impeadred a 3

Met trade receivables - , -
Ciirran As at As at
: 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Trade receivables =
{a}) Unsecared, consbtered good F 2
I} Helated Pamny 255.06 235.59
i) Lithers G46.30 553.80
(b)) Unsecured, considered dowbiful L =
i) Related Parey X -
Hi Grhers 45.32 34,88

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (expected credit
lnss allowance)

Trade Receivalile which have significant incrase in credit

Il risk = =

{d)  Coedit impaired (132.02) {34.88)
Met trade recelvables : 827.66 789.19
Motes
11.1 Trade receivables

The above trade receivables represent the trade receivables of The Bisra Stene Lime Company Limited

11.2 The sale of goods s made to the parties on credit for a credit period of 15 days. No Interest is charge aven if
the amount remaing over due for more than the credit period. The trade receivable appearing in the bogks
represents amount receivable recognised against the sale of goods made during the credit period. These are
certain cystomer from whom the amount is remaining uncoliscted for mare than the credit pericd. However, the
same has been provided for in the books.

The Company has used & practical approach by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivable
6N a case 1o case basis, The Cormpany makes provision for allowances based on the Industrial credit |oss exprience
and adjusted for forward loking information on a case to case basis. The amgunt of provision that has been
recogrised as allowence for doubtful trade recelvables (expected credit loss aliowence) represents the cases
where Lheé amount has bedome due over the credit period and due to the dispute with customer it has become
uncertain that when the amount will be collected,

With respect to the trade receivables of The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited

The sale of goods is made agalnst advances received from customer, The sdvance received from customer Is
adjusted on supgly of matarial. Thare is no credit period allowed for such sales and accordingly no interest is to be
charged. The trade recelvable appearing In the books includes amount receivable recognised against the debiors
towards the debit notes raised on the customers due to changes in Government levies {Royalty on ad-voleram
basis by 18M). The Company has reled such debit notes on the basls of restrospective recomuptation of the sales
made in the past period from which the retrospective levies have been made applicable by the Government,

11.3 Trade Receivables ageing Schedule

As at 31.03.2024 {8, in Lakhs)
‘More
Within Credit Leas then &
Purticulars Period i &3 year | then 3 Total
yours
Undisputed Trade Receivables - - <
P 700,19 02.32 &6.54 24 B0




1L!!uiLrpumd Trade Receivabies -
which have significant incress: I ‘ » "
in credit risk

mm“;:j$“ etmblen- = - . : 34,88 34.38

Disguted Trade Receivatides—
sidered] good a c & = - . X

Bispuied Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase - . . 5
I orecie elak

mﬁ Receivalies — . 5 3
32

Ax ut 31.03.2023 R in Lakhs)

Within Cradit Loss then 6 6 months - 1
Particulars Period k) your 1-2 year 23 year

ifs
;

Undigputed Trade Receivables - 3
Corsidered Good B124E 263 69 = 13.02 TES, 1D

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have slgnificant increase . :
i Eredit risk

Undisputed Trade Recelvabies - g
eredit impsdeed = 34.88 44.88

Disputed Trade Receivables— ) . =
eansiderad good I - y ;

Disputed Trade Recolvables =
which hove significant lnereases i . o . = ; i«
in credit risk

Disputed Trade Recrivables - ‘
credit impaired

11.4 Movement in amounts of provision for doubtful trade receivables

Amount
Rs. in lakhs

Balance as at 31.03,2023 34.88
Addition/{reversal ) (97.14)
Balance as at 31.03.2024 132.02




Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12.1 - Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and In banks

at the end of the reporting period as shown below:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(@} Cash on hand 0.14 0.39
(b} Balances with banks - -
(1) Balance with scheduled banks
(i) In current account 823.320 743.46
(i) In deposit account (in deposit account with original maturity )
of 3 months or less) i .
Total cash and cash equivalents B23.44 743.85
12.2 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
(1) Balance with scheduled banks
(1) Earmarked Balance with scheduled banks * (Margin Money) 1,994.81 7,305.55
{ii) Unpaid Dividend 26.20 26.20
. In deposit account (in deposit account with original maturit
(i) of mu'ie than 3 manths. aisl upto 15 months) ) . A0.08 i
(2) Balance with banks against guarantees and other commitments - -
- Maturity more than 12 months - -
- Maturity less than 12 months -
{3) Earmarked Balance with Other banks - -
(i} In Current Account -
{ii) In Depaosit Acgpur!t = -
Total other bank balances 2,031.01 7,3B1.75

Note:

* Earmarked balance with Scheduled Bank other than cash and cash equivalent of The Orissa Minerals
Development Company Limited represents amount deposited in scheduled banks towards unpaid dividends,

Ww
g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 - Assets classified held for sale
Amount Rs. in Lakhs

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Property, plant and equipment
Carrying amount 10.99 10.99
Less: Provision for impairment for assets held for sale (10.99) (10.99)

ﬁet assets held for sale - -

13.1 The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited intends to dispose off the property, plant
and equipment no longer to be utilised in the next 12 months. The Company does not
expect any value on sale, hence the provision has been made for the carrying amount of

the asset.
o
N/

"
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in Rs. lakhs
14 - Share capital

As at As at
= 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Equity share capital 141.90 141.90
141.90 141,90
Authorised share capital: e
13,500,000 fully paid shares of Rs. 10/- each B 1,350.00 1,350.00
1,350.00 1,350.00
Issued and subscribed share capital comprises:
1,418,353 fully pald shares of Rs. 10/- each 141,50 14190
141.90 141.50
14,1 - Fully paid equity shares
Amount in
Meo. of shares Rs. lakhs
Balance as at 01.04.2023 1,418,953.00 141.90
Issue of shares _m iR : -
Balance as at 31.03.2024 1,418,953.00 141.90

(&) The Company has only ene class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each share holder is eligible for one vote
per share.The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

14.2 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of shares
Shares In the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares specifying the number of shares held.

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Mo, of shares briasias No. of shares % of holding
held holding ot held of shares
1, Rastriya Ispat Nigam Limited 736,638.00 51.91% 736,638.00 51.91%
2. President of India 228,114.00 16.08% 278,114.00 16.08%
3. Life Insurance Company of India 78,517.00 5.53% 7B,517.00 5.53%
4, Others _375,684.00 _26.48% 375,684.00 26.48%
1,418,953.00 100.00% 1,418,953.00 100.00%

14.3 The details of shares heid by the holding company is also covered in the note no. 14,2
14.4 There is no movement in the equity share capltal during the current period.
14.5 A reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Equity Shares
Particulars
skl Number Face Value (Rs.) Rs. in lakhs
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,418,953 Re, 10/- 141.80
Shares outstanding as at the end of the yvear 1,418,953 Rs. 10/- 141.90

14.6 Issued and subscribed
i} 5,12,000 Mo. of Eguity Shares have been allotted as lully pakd up pursuant to 8 conkract without payment being recaived in cash

iy 2,57,419 Mo, of Equity Shares were allotted fior consideration other than cash in cancellation of 59,340 Ordinary equity share in terms of the
scheme of amalgamation porsuant to the Order No SESE dated 04.09.84 passed by the Government of [ndia, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company
Affairs. In terms of Section 396 of the Companies Act, 1958, whereby the undertakings of the Companies, viz. {1} The Sendra Investments Co, Ltd,,
(i) The Dandal Inyestments Co. Lid,, (Hi) Garuda Investments Co, Ltd., (iv) The Lawrence Investments and Property Co. Ltd., (v) The General
imvestmients and Trust Co. Ltd., {vl) Birds Trading and Investments Co. Lid. were dissolved and vested In this Company, the Resulting Company,
with effect from 10th September, 19583 (the Appointed Day).

iy 4,77 035 No. of Equity Shares were aliotted on préferential basis for consideration other than cash towards acquisition of 85,215 no. of Equity
shares of The Orissa Minerals Cevelopment Company Ltd. and 4,34,49,605 ng, of Equity shares of The Bisra Stone Lime Company Ltd, from
Government of India in terms of duly approved restructuning scheme (Refer Note below).

14.7 Restructuring scheme

1) In terms of the Scheme of Restructuring appreved Dy the Unign Cabinel, Eastern Investment Ltd. (EIL) had acquired 9621% no, of Equity shares of
{including 85,219 Shares from the Govt. of India) in The Crissa Minerals Development Company Lbd. {OMEC) and 4,34,49, 605 no, of Equity shares
from The Bisra Stone Lime Company Lbd. [BSLT) during the year ended 31.03.2010.

iiy Consequent to the above arrangement, tatal holding of the Government of India in the paid capital of EIL had become 65,79% and the holding of
EIL in OMDC and BSLC had become more than 50% of paid capital of respective companies, accordingly, EIL had become Government Company and
aisz the holding company of OMDC and BSLE with effect from 19th March, 2010,

Jil) In continuation o the above arrangement, on 5th lanuary, 2011, Rashiriya Ispat Nigam Ltd. (RINL) has acquired 7,365,638 no. of Equity shares
representing 51% of Share Capital of EIL from the Govt. of India and thereby EIL has become subsidiary of RINL. As a result, direct holding of the
Gowt. of india has thus come down ta 15.79%. ey

_I,_:—"
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15 - Other eguity Armaunt in RS, lakhs

As af As at
31.03.2024 31.03.20%3

Copital reservie 1387424 13,874,24
InveRbment o = i
Reserve fumd [Special reserve) 1,0606.63 _1,088.83
SRCUFEIGS premiLim 23334 23,334.34
Senaral resorve _IMEEM 191106
Profit and oss (47,889.27)  (48.160.55)
Total (5,724,658}  [7.951.88)
Other cquity o
ottt tems of other camprehansive
laaree apreacd
i
Other equity Capital Reserve| ITvEstmEnt nﬂ”i.“rﬂlm Securkthes General Remeasuremen Fai-... Iinstruments Tatal
FEEETWE prErmium resErye £ of tha net through othar
resere] Profit and loss Jafinad | it b "
plans Incame |U..r
Balance as st 0104, 2022 13,874.24 = 1,088.83 [ 23,334.34 1,911, 26 (47, D45, TH) {83.39) - (7, 220.50) ~
Transfer to Ganeral Haserve . - - - - - B = =
Profit far the peer - - - - - (649,27} (832.13) - (731.38)
Othar comprechiermsnae mooemse, net of Incoms: tas & = - & = i = - #
Tatal comprehenthe Icoma = - z B 5 {47,099%.05) [165.51) = (48, 160.55)
Payment of dividersd = = - - - = =
Appropreabion kO reterwes = - - - - - -
lance as at 31.03.2023 13.874.24 = 1,088.83 23,334.34 1,511.28 (47, ,995.05) (165.51) = {7, 951.88)
|Balance as at 01,04.2023 13,874.24 - 1,088.83 | 23,334.34 1,911.26 (47,995.08) [165.51} - {7, 951.88)
Transfer bo Genersl Reserve - - = - - - - - r
Profic far the year = = - = - 337.11 (63.93) Fio 273.18
| Other comprelansive incoms, net of Incoms tax = = 23 . . & = = 5
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (47 657.94) (229.43) - (47,887.37)
Fayyment of dividand - - - - - - - - -
Appropriatean [0 resarves = - - - - . = - -
Balance as at 31,03.2024 13 A74.24 - 108883 | F5,334.54 1,911.26 (47,657.94) {223.43) = (7,678.70)

(o0 21 2
15.5.17 The General HBesere 5 used fom time to teme 5o transfer profits from retained earmings for appropriation purposes. As the general resere i created By 8 translar from o companent of equity 1o -ancther
and = gt &n item of other comprehsnsive iInmma, moms included in the genersl resere will not be recassiflied subsequently b profit or loss

15 8.2 The amaunt in the General Ressrve thal can be distribuled by the Company as dividends to s eguity sharehoiders 5 determined based upon the Compary's fmandal statesmems and sso considering the

reguUremants oF the Companias Act, 2013
)
@ V4

15137 In view of Hie pormpany incufiad W55 in the Firandal Yaar 2017-18, 700E-19, 2019-20,2020-21 and 2021+ 22, 2022-23 no devidend was declasad by the company
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16 - Non-controlling interests Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Balance at beginning of year (3,291.31) (2,96B.96)
Share of profit for the year 191.45 (322.35)
Balance at end of year (3,099.86) (3,291.31)
g
V-
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Eastern Investments Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

16a - Non-current borrowings

Unsecured - at amortised cost

As at As at
31.03.2024  31.03.2023

{1} Loan from Union Bank including against payment to

Government Odisha towards Compensation including = _
interest

(i} Term loans from related parties - -

Total non-current borrowings S =

i6a.1

16a.2

16a.3

In respect of BSLC, Terms of re-payment of term loan from Eastern Investments Ltd (EIL):

(&) Principal amount of Rs. 1,375 lacs disbursed till 31.03.2013 is repayable in 120 equal
monthly installments starting from April 2013 and Principal amount of Rs. 125 lacs disbursed
after 31.03.2013 is repayable in 120 equal monthly instalments starting next month from the
month of disbursement,

(b) As per the terms, Simple interest on the term loan is payable on monthly basis at RBI
interest rate prevailing on the date of disbursement for the vear of disbursement and for
subsequent vears at the prevailing RBI interest rate.

BSLC, Due to acute financial crisis, the Company could not pay any manthly installment
towards repayment of principal since 2014, Aggregate amount of principal and interest falling
due for payment but remaining unpaid as at the year ended 31.03.2024 is Bs. 1500 lacs and
Rs. 1053.70 lacs respectively.

Current maturities of long-term borrowings has been reported as a part of short term
borrowings
w)

NZ
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 (b) - BORROWINGS
Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
urrent
< 31.03.2024  31.03.2023
1 Loan from Union Bank against payment to - 17,359.82
Government Odisha towards Compensation
including interest
Total current Borrowings - 17,359,822

Motes: Refer notes of Schedule 16a

L7



Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

17 - Provisions

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

As at “As at
Pl =uera 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
{al  Provision for employee benefits
(1} Retirement benefits obligations
{1} Retiring gratuity 246.70 894,71
{2) Other Long-term empigyee benefits = =
(1) Super Annuation Fund 14.75 12.95
(I} Half pay lzave 555.77 545.55
(i1} (i) Provision for Leave Encashment 0.88 1,13
(3} Other provisions * -
(1) Provision far rates and taxes 101.57 101.67
(i1} Lease labilities N — = =
Total non-current provisions 1,619.77 1,557.07
Other provisions
Balance as at 01.04.2023 101.67
Aditional pravision recogrised / (reversed) 2
Balance as ot 31.03.2024 101.67
As at As at
[ERETE 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Other Long-term employee benefits
Retiring Gratuity 7HL.19 1,863.31
- Compensated absences 565.41 485,80
(2) Other employes related provisions
- Provision for pay revision 4,399.96 4,1895.92
- Provision for Bonus 0.97 3.66
(3} Other provisions
(1} Provision for site reciamation T04.48 704,48
(2} Pravision for wiltdiife conservation plan - ol
(3) Lease liabilities - -
(4) Provision for other legal cbilgations = .
(53 Provision for Judicial Award 1,167.66 1,079.40
o (&) Other provisions 325.96 265.74
Total non-current provisions 7,945.63 8,598.31
Provision for Provision for Provision
gite reclamation wildlife Other for lease
L il i [See note conservation Provision for provisions renewal
18.04] plan SJudicial Award fees
Balance as at 01.04.2023 704.48 - 1,079.40 265.74 -
Additional provislon recognised / (reversed) - - 88.26 60.22
Balance as at 31.03.2024 704.48 - 1,167.66 325.96 x

17.2 EIL- Rent and cess on land revenue

1.The company pald Rent and Cess on Land Revenue on Lawrence Property at Baurla @ Re. 2,012 per year till 31.03.2001 with the office of the

Revenue Inspector.

2. The company had not accepted the substantial increase in such charges fram 2001-02, therefare continued to provide liability on the basis of
claims received. In absence of any formal claim by the concerned department, amount of such claim, (if any], has neither been ascertained nor
considered in the accounts from the financial year 2008-03 onwards.




17.3

i7.4

3. A letter reference na: EiL / Lawrence property / 01 di. 14.03.2018 has been issued 1o Block Land & Land Reform office with a copy to District
Land & Land Aeform office and Dircetor of Land Recard and Service. It has been requested in the letter ta provide the land tax dues by BLELRO for
payment by ElLand also requested to consider the compensation for the land acquired by the Gowt, of W.B . which is vet to be received in
accordance with the judgment passed by Additional Distict Judge, Subsegquently, letter dated 5.4.2018. issued to Additional District Magistrate, LR
& DLLRO, Govt. of W.B with a copy to Principal secrtary and Land Reform Commissioner , Govt, of W.B to expedite the matter.

4, Information through RT) Act has been sought on 11.06.2018, by which it has been asked the due land tax for 49,19 Acres and whether any
natice for the same has been Issued by the department. A reply was received on 28.06.2018 on the RTI application which states Quote * The
matter of realistion of land revenue in case of subject land does not arlse and 8s such there is no guestion of raising demand of land revenue in
respect of said land” Unguote.

BSLC

{1} Provision for :

a) Gratuity: Gratuity Payable on separation @ 15 days’ pay for each completed yaar of service to eligible employees who has render continuaws
service of § years or more. Maximum amaunt in the case of separation 15 Rs.20.00 Lac for each Emploves, Provisian on account of gratuity is being
magde as per the actuarial valuation,

b) Leave Encashment payable on separation to efigible employess who have accumulated earned and half pay leave totaling up to 300 days,
Encashment of accumulated earned leave for executives is allowed vp to 30 days once In a financial year.

£} Accrued Gratuity of retired/leftover employees amounting Rs. 1144.20 Lacs have been inluded in the Actuarial Report. Provision of Current
Retiring Gratuity shown above is excluded of A5.1144.20 Lacs,

oMDC

{i} Pay Revislon of employees:

The provision is recognised with respect to the pay revision of the employees of Central Public Sector Enterprises, the same is provided for in the
books of accournts with effect from 1st April, 2010 on basis of the difference in Basic Pay and Industrial Dearness Altiowance between 1997 and
2007 Pay ScaleCalculation made on basis of the present basic pay and IDA component of the existing employees,

(i) Prowvision for site raclaimation & Restoration:

Provision for site reciaimation s made with respect to the restoration of the mines and are made against the demand raised by the vanious mining
related departments of Gavernrment for site reclamation and restoration as required under the Mining laws. Balance amount for site reclaimation
based on revised calculation is provided in contingent fiability,

(Fij Provision for Legal obligation :-Provision available for Legal Obligation is Rs. 1167.66 Lakh.

‘Q*“j)/.’
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Notes to the Consolidated Statements

18 Deferred Tax Liabllities

Amount in Rs. lakhs

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presanted In the balance shaet:

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Daferred tax assets 19,852.20 19081.53
Deferred tax liabilities (602.62) [B17.43)
19249.58 18464.10
2023-24
Opening o . cognised in R.mm.:md:: Cloatng
Deferred tax liabilities [ assets: balance as at rofE Or 1086 o0 hansiye Dalance as at
01.04.2023 P e 31.03.2024
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities =
On difference between book balance and tax balance of -
fixed assets 278.50 (24.17) = 554,33
Tax impact on fair value galn/{loss) an iméestment
ciassified as FYTPL 38.03 9.36 48.29
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
liabilities 617.43 (14.81) 602.62
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Cn difference between book balance and tax balance of R
fiwed assets
Provision for compensated absences, gratulty and other
emplayee henafits B4.34 64,41 - 149,05
Tax impact on Remeasurement gain/(loss) arsing from
defined banefit obligation 5566 = (35.53) 22.13
PFrovisicn for doutitful disbts / advances 18, 537,27 716,94 - 19,254.21
Cisatlowance under Section 438 of Income Tax Act, 1961 -
MAT Cradit 404,16 22,65 43681
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 19.081.53 804.20 {33.53) 1%.852.20
Deferred tax liabilities / (assats) (net) (18,464.10) [819.01) 33.53 (19,2459.58)
2022-23
d |
Closing o cognised In n“n'"l’:m-: "
Dufarred tax liabilities | assets: balance as at "‘:'ﬁ 2 4 O ivg Dalance as at
31.03.2022 P p"":"“" 31.03.2023
noome
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabliities
On difference between book balance and tax balance of -
Fonrh Axmits 54,65 52381 - S78.50
Tax impact on fair value gain/{loss} on investment
classified as FYTPL 34,80 4.13 - 38,53
ASA S W USSR LRI LI g LA
limkiiitias B9.49 527.94 - 617.43
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Cn difference between beok balance and tax batance of
fixed asseEts
Provision far compensated absences, gratuity and other
Employee benefits it (5.85) PRy
Tax impack on Remeasuremeant gainy(loss} arising fram
defined benefit obligation 4382 Ao 339 ks
Provisien for doubtful debts | advances 16818.67 L.718.60 18,537 27
Cisallowence under Section 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 = =
MAT Cradic 404.16 0416
16,522.78 2,116.91 31.B4 15,081.53
Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) (net) 16,843.29 1,588.97) """

R e

Note:- Deferred Tax Calculation is made based on temporary difference of deprec| n'as per P
and Income Tax Act, 1961 disallowances U/s 40 A(7) & 43 B and Business Loss /

50

Assessment Year 2023-24,

PP
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Eastern Investments Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 - Trade payables

Current

(1) Total uhtstandlng dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises {See note below)

(2) Tetal outstanding dues of trade payables other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

{@) Trade payatles for supplies and services
{b) Others
- Creditors for accrued wages and salaries

Total current trade payables

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

36.72 :
1,727.47 685.75
 1,764.19 685.75

Motes:

15.1 The credit period on purchases varies from contract to contract based on the terms of payment in
each contract. In none of the contract interest is charged. The company has financial risk ma nagement
policy in place to ensure that all payables are paid as per agreed terms.

19.2 Trade Payables ageing Schedule

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars Less than 1 More then 3
Kot Due piir 1-2 year 2-3 year iy Total
MEME 30.64 0,29 0.92 877 36.72
Others 6435.27 6.79 722 1,068.1% 1,727.47
Disputed dues - MSME = = =
Disputed dues - Others - - - -
As at 31.03.2023 =
Particulars 3
Not Due L“:::il 1-2 year | 2-3 year H"':-:]::" Total
MSME 2 e :
Others - 3268 122.95 1.33 528.59 6B5.75
Disputed dues - MEME % = x
Disputed dues - Others - =

BSLC:

19.3.1 The dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006
which have been determined to the extent such parties have been identifled an the basis of information available with the Company. The
said payment will be made on pricroty basis on available fund.

19.3.2 The credit period on purchases varies from contract to contract based on the terms of payment in each contract. In none of the
contract interest is charged. The company has financial risk management policy in place to ensure that all payables are paid as per agreed

terms;




Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 - Other financial liabilities

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As il-'.

As at
Lot 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(@) Creditors for other liabilities
(i Employee related payables 3,399.60 2,307.09
(li} Security deposits from contractors 1,175.34 1,229.49
{iii} Employees' recoveries - -
(Iv) Royalty payable - -
(v) Unpaid dividends (refer note below) 58.54 58.54
(vi} Amount payable to related party 172.66 109.82
(vil} Unclaimed amount on redemption of preference shares 2.09 2.09
(viii) Creditors for other liabilities - -
Earnest monetary deposit and security deposits
(@) from custormers 240,42 930,74
o (b) Others - 2,953.83 3,447.48
Total non-current other financial liabilities 8,002.48 B,085.25

Mote 20.1 - EIL

i} Unpaid Dividend relates to Dividends unpaid for F.Y 2011-12 (Rs.2.27 lacs), 2012-13 (Rs. 1.89 lacs), 2013-14 (Rs 0,14 lacs),
2015-16 (Rs. 2.68 lacs) and 2016-17 (Rs.1.50 lacs), 2017-18 (0.64 lac). As per F.No:01/34/2013 CL-V-Part-lll of General
Circular No.04/2021 Dated 28.01.2021 of Ministry Of Corporate Affairs, no additional fees levied upto 15.02.21 in respect of
filing ADCS excepting normal fees.

it} Service cost of deputed empovees from RINL for Rs, 172.66 lacs

iif} Other Current Liability consists of L-Remittance (OMDC PF Institution: Rs.1.80 lacs), Liability Professionl Fees [Rs 0.32 lacs),
Prov, for contingencies (Rs 13.13}, Salary { Rs 0.94 Lac) and EMD (Rs 0.30 Lac), Tiffin Expensas (Rs 0.01 lac), Telephore exp |
Rs 0.42 Lacs), Secreterial audit fees (Rs 0.12 lacs), Tax audit fees (Rs 0,14 Lacs), Statutory Auditor [ Rs. 1,76 Lakhs) and Others
(Rs 1.95 lacs).

Note 20.2 - OMDC

1.Unpaid dividend includes Rs. 32.34 lakhs for disputed dividend as on March 31, 2024. The Unpaid Dividend
pertains to 12-13 - Rs. 3.40 Lakhs, 13-14 - Rs. 1.36, 14-15 - Rs. 6.03 Lakhs, 15-16 - Rs. 3.24 Lakhs & 16-17
- Rs. 3.06 Lakhs,

2. Other Liabilities amounting Rs. 1668.29Lac includes Inoperative Account(Rs.202.60 Lac), Liability toward
General Mines (Rs.1226.36 Lac), Liability toward Contractor & Sundry Creditors (Rs.114.20 Lac) and
Liabilities toward Hospital, General(5IP), Railway (DCRPunitive), Stores for Mines & SIP etc (Rs.125.13).

3. There are no dues payable to Micre and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information awvallable with the Company.

Mote 20.3 - BSLC

Note: Other Employee related payables includes the arrears of Rs.1554.04 Lacs for gratuity of retired
employees. Provision for interest on gratuity has been made. It also includes the arrear salaries of
Rs.1231.06 Lacs , however management anticipates no interest is payabl




Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Amount in Rs. lakhs

21 -Other Current liabilities

As at As at

SUrreoe _ 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(i) Advances received from customers 25,701.01 16,264.22
(i) Statutory dues

(a) Electricity duty and interest thereon - -

(b) Provident fund 34,63 28.01

{c} EPF Penal Damage & Interest 43.13 -

(d) Tax deducted at source 23.55 30.94

(e} Others 6,287.54 4,164.55
(iii) Other liabiltities - 1.56
(iv) Other credit balances 191.50 107.31
Total other Current liabilities 32,281.36 20,596.59

Note 21.1 - Other credit balance includes Rs. 2.56 lakhs compensation received from
praperty under disputes 1946.

$3
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22 - Revenue from operations
22.1 - Revenue from operations

For the year For the
ended year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Sale of products
i) Dolomite and limestone B,466.97 8,619.17
it} Minor mineral - -
iii) ron Gre 8,187.56 3,553.06
iv] Manganese Ore 40.36 0.01
v) Sponge - -
(b} Dividend received from other investments 4,38 3.72
(c) Interest Income from
i) Bank deposits 410.16 421.85
ii) Security deposits 4,18 2.47
iit) Mon-current investment - -
iv) Income Tax Refund 2.25 -
v) Others 1.77 2.12
vi) Bonds -
_ (d) Interest income from term deposits ___45.83 33.27
Total revenue from operations 17,163.46 12,635.67
22.2 - Break up of Sale of products - i
For the year For the
ended year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Limestone 1,271.33 513.72
Dolomite = 7,195.64 8,105.45
Minor Mineral 8,227.92 3,553.07
16,694.89 12,172.24

22.3

EIL - Dividend Received from: SAIL- Rs. 0.02 Lacs , HDFC-Rs.0.57 Lacs , ITC - Rs. 3.54 Lacs ,
Reliance - Rs, 0.02 Lacs , Rs. 0.17 Lacs from India Power corporation Itd, Rs.0.02 from BPML and

Rs.0.04 Lacs from ACC .




Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in Rs. lakhs

23 - Other income

For the year For the

ended year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Interest benefits on amortisation of employee loans - -
(b) Liabilities no longer required written back 190.00 44.62
{c) Llcence fee - -
{c}) Provision for leave encashment written back - -
(d) Fair value gains/(loss) arising from financial instrument classified as FVTPL 45.01 19.74
() Other miscellaneous income 148.06 218,42

(f) Dividend received from other investments : B - s
Total other income 383.07 282.78

23.1 Note:Fair value gain (less) represents change in fair value on the reporting date as compared to previously
reported fair value of the financial instruments classified as Fair value through Profit or Loss (FYTPL).

23.2 In case of OMDC, Miscellaneous Income includes rent received from SBI for ATM Countre, BSNL for Mobile

Tower and recovered from Agencles for their employees accomodation,




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in Rs. lakhs
24 - Changes in Inventories of finished goods and work in progress

For the year ended For the year
31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023
Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods and wark in progress 2,580,591 2,532.94

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods and work in progress 2,532.94 2,339.25

Total (47.97) (193.69)

In case of OMDC:

24.1 OMDC was operating the BPMEL Mines upto 2010 and extracted the minerals under the
Power of Attorney. OMDC is the beneficial owner of the leases. The right of the leases in the
name of OMDC is continuously being contested. The issue of lease right in the Court of Law is
pending to be decided, since the case of BPMEL with OMDC is subjudice. Hence, the stock lying
in the area of Kolha Reida, Thakurani and Dalki of BPMEL {which |s a liquidated company) have
been valued by OMDC and taken into its books of accounts,

\

.




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 - Contractual Expenses

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the For the

year ended year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Contract Labour & Others 59.98 58.50
(b) Crushing Charges 1,809.24 1,987.21
(c) Development Work 150.40 178.84
{d) Development Plantation 0.89 2.16
(e} Loading & Transporting 464.47 581.24
(f} Raising 227.73 265.04
(g) Reject Boulder | Raising) 34.46 31.67
(h) Dewatering = 13.55
Total 2,747.17 3,118.21

57




Eastern Investments Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Amount in Rs. lakhs

26 - Royalty
For the For the
year ended vyear ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
fa) Royalty, dead rent or surface rent - BSLC 1,188.10 1,218.76
(b} Rovalty, dead rent or surface rent - OMD{ 1,944.65 BB9.71
Total 3 3,132.75 2,106.47




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 - Employee benefit expense

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year For the

ended year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
{a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 2,921.67 3,367.43

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(1) Provident fund and other funds 368.31 280.17
(2) Superannuation fund 81.99 84.64
{3) Gratuity 511.88 401.67
(4) Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme 3.45 3.91
(c) Staff welfare expenses 394.51 292.80
(d) Transfer Expenses- Employees = =
(e} Transfer Grant- Employees - -
Total employee benefit expense 4,381.81 4,430.62
&
N




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2B - Finance costs
Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year For the

ended Year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Interest cost 3,056.87 2,435.90
Other Borrowing Cost 4,21 6.78
Total finance costs 3,061.08 2,442.68

28.1 - OMDC

Finance Cost includes B. G. Commission-Rs.4.21lakh and Interest on
STL-Rs.826.26L & Interest on trade advance from RINL-
Rs.2130.71Lakh, Credit rating Charges-Rs.9,76Lakh.

b
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 - Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amount in Rs, lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Depreciation of plant, property and eguipment 5071 ° 51.49
Amortisation of Intangible assets 216.80 209.47
Amortisation of investment property - -
Amortisation of CWIP 258.86 -
Total depreciation and amortisation 526.37 260.96

—_————

Notes:
29.1 - OMDC

Notes: Expenditure incurred for obtaining required clearances to operate the mines subsequent
to the allotment of their lease is capitalised as Intangible Assets, Amortization effect is given
considering revalidation of Mining Lease upto 30-09-2030 for Bhadrasai Lease, 15-08-2026 for
Belkundi Lease and 10-10-2041 for Bagiaburu Lease.

&

N

6l



Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Amount in Rs. lakhs
30 - Other expenses
For the year For the
ended year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Stores and spares consumed 36.15 33.12
< Repairs to bulldings 44 85 B5.82
3 Repairs to machinery 63.96 BD.03
4  Aepairs to athars 236.35 0.2
5  Consumption of fuel oil 137.09 24,40
6 Purchase of power 27241 ITRT
7  Rent expenses 39.28 53.11
B  Rates and taxes 77.08 72.09
§  Insurance charges ) 369 3.82
10 Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses (Refer no, 32.1) 10.14 10,25
11 Advertisement expenses 9.17 3.58
12 Travelling expenses 33.85 31.81
13 Security and fire fighting expenses 331.87 316.35
14 Cerporate Social Responsibility expenses (Refer note no, 31,2 - 11.52
15 Enwironment protection expenges 9.27 4.50
16 Hobel and incidental expenses 0.65 3.45
17 Legal and judicial expenses 23.77 6133
18 Printing and stationery expenses 5.70 15.56
19  Communication expenses 3.81 5.45
20  Amortsation of prepaid expenses an employee bang 027 D.42
21  Amortisation of Prepaid Lease Hold Propertiss - 0.29
22 AGM [/ Annual Day / Board Meeting Expenditure 0.46 0.11
23  Consuftancy Charges B.36 10.58
24  Mator Car Expenses 4644 46,22
25 Service Charges (OFA) - 1.52
26 Rellway siding charges 7.94 4.457
&7 Licence fees = -
28 Hire charges 1561 7.35
9 Professignal expenses 31.98 2164
30 Misc Provision B71.60 982.50
31 Compensation paid against excess Mining a -
32  User Fee 3.25 1.54
33 Interast on statutory lizbilitles 318.05 Fo.95
34 __ Other geners] expenses Figa7 355.44
Total other expenses 3972.33  2,713.05 |
30.1 Note:-
oMDC

L.Campensation against Excess Mining:-Pursuant to the Judgement of Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 02.08.2017, Gy.
Director of Mines, Odisha had issued different demand notices dated 02.00.2017, 23.00.2017 & 13,12.2017 to OMDC
for OMDC Leases and to BPMEL for BPMEL Leasas towards compensation. The amaount of Demand for OMDC Leases is
Rs. 7021646 Lacs and for BPMEL Leases is Bs. B&157.12 Lacs, totallimg Rs. 156375.58 Lacs towards EC, FC and
MP/CTO. OMOC had been operating BPMEL Leases backed by Power of Attorney to sign and executé all mining leases
and gther mineral concesskons from time to tme. OMDC has paid the compensation of OMDC Leases of Rs.87622.10
Lakhs towards OMDC Leases (Rs. 1479.68 Lakhs on 29.12.2017; Rs. 13093.47 Lakhs on 16.11.2018, Rs. 693.45
Lakhs on 30.01.2019, Rs. 40000.00 Lakhs on D1.03.2019, Rs. 100 Lakhs on 20.09.201% and Rg, 32255.50 Lakhs on
03.10.2019) in 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 out of its own fund of As.56622.10 Lac and borrowed fund from Bank
Rs.31000.00 Lac . OMDC has paid a sum of Re. 2715.14 Lakhs (Rs, 2515.14 Lakhs on'29.12.2017 and Rs. 200.00
Lakhs on 16.11,2018) towards BPMEL Leases as advance. The remaining amournt of compensation including interest
upto 31.03.2023 against BPMEL Leases amounting As.180182.17 Lakh are shown under Cantingent Liability.

2. Leasehold Properties has been reclassified as operating lease, Ammoaortisation of prepayment of Leasehald
Properties has been shown under Ammortisation of Prepayment Leasehold Properties.

For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2014 31.03.2023

30.2 Details of Auditor's remuneration for the year ended:
Auditors remuneration and gut-of-pockst expenses

(1} As Auditors 964 0.50
(i} For Taxation matters = 3
(I} For Other services 0 .50 0.75

(v} For reimbursement of expenses -

30.3 Expenditure on Corporate soclal reponsibility- OMDC:

8. Re B.52 Lakh shown 1ast year under CSE wrongly, now shown in FY 2023-28 under Welfare-Others { incluged in
Other General Expenses) os no eliotment on C5R avallabla, B




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 - Income taxes

31.1 Income taxes recognised in profit and loss

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year For the
ended year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Current tax
In respect of the current year = 210.93
In respect of prior years 3.52 36.76
3.52 247.69
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (822.89) (1,405.44)
(323.39} (1,405.44)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current
year

31.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive
income

(819.37) (1,157.75)

For the year For the
ended year ended
~31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Deferred tax
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other
comprehensive income 37.58 LB
:E'ntai income tax recognised in other comprehensive 37.58 31.84
income
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other
comprehensive income into:
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 37.58 31.84
37.58 31.84

b3




Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

32 - Earnings per share

For the year

For the year ended

Basic and diluted earnings per share £3.76

ended 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Rs. per share Rs. per share
(45.78)

32.1 Basic and diluted earnings per share

The Earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings

per share are as follows

For the year

Amount in Rs, lakhs
For the year ended

ended 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company 337.11 {649.27)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share 337.11 (649.27)
As at 21.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Quantity in lakhs

Quantity in lakhs

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 14.19

14.19

£y
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

33 - Employes benefit plan
33,1 Defined contribution plan

a) Provident fund: Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund a1 the rate of 12 % on Bewc and dearnass allowance.

The company has no further obligation for future provident fund benefits in respect of the employess other than its monthly cantributions remitted to Provident

fund autharities in accordance with the refevant statubes and charged to statement of profit and loss in the period i which the related emghoyees seraces are
rendered.

-

33.2 pefined banefit plans

n} Gratulty: Fayabie on separation & 15 days pay for sach completed year of serace to eligible emplopess who render continuous service of 5 years ar mors
and maximum payable amount s calculated as per Gratuity Act. The gratuity amount is not covered and the provision on Bocount of gratulty is being made as
per the actuarial valuatian,

b} Eamned Leave Benefts: Payable gn separstion for 8 maximum alfocation of 300 days salary [ Defnation of Satary Is last drawn Basic+IDA) . This &2 a5 per
the: guidelines msuisd for e CPSE.

€} Half grivitege Leave Benefits: Payable on segaration for a maximum atiecation of 300 days half salary | Defination of Salary w last drawn Basic=I0A) . This
|5 &8 pEr the guidelines ssued for the CPSE.

These plans typécalfly expose the group ba actuaial risks such a< actuarial risk, smvestment risk, intorest risk, ipngativiky rizk and salary risi.

i- Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost mare than expectad. This can arise due t2 one of the fofiowing reassns:

Agverse Sadary Growth Experience: Saiary hikes that sre higher than the assemod salary escadation will result nts an inereass |7 Obligation at a rate that is
higher than expected.

Wariability in martality rates: If actusl mortality rates are higher than assumed manality rate assumption thean the Gratuity benefits. will be pald earfer than
exgected, Since there |s no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceferation of cashfiow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the
relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate,

Variabiity In withdrawal rates. IT actual withdrawe! rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratulty benafits will be paid earfier
than expected The impact of this will depend gn whether the benefits ane vested as at there signation date,

Ii. Tnvestrment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for menaging the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may nok be the fair value of
mstrumants backing the Hagiiity, In Such cases, the present valus of the assets 15 independent of the future discownt rate, This can result in wide fluctuations
i the net habilty or the funded status if there ace ssgnificant changes in the discount rate during the Inter-valuation period.

Iil. Liquidity risk: Emplayees with high sataries and long durations or those higher in heerarchy, accurmsdate significant tevel of benents. If some of such
omployess resigny retire from the company there can be strain on the casklows.

iv. Market risk: Market risk is 3 collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fuctuations of the financlal markets, One actearial assumption
that has a material effecr i the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time vatue of money, An incréase in discount rate leads to decrease In Defined
Bemnefit QDligation of the plen benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yvields an the corparste/government bends and hence the valuation of
liakilsty 18 exposed o fuctuabions in the yields as at the valuation date.

v. Legislative risk: Legisiative risk |s the risk of Incréase in the plan lisbilities or reduction In the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation, The
governmant may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay nigher benefits to the empioyess, This will directly affect the
present value of the Dafined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recagnized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effactive,

wl. Interest risk: A decrease in interest rate will increese the plen labilicy; however, this will be paritially offsel by an increase in the return on the plan assats.

vii. Longevity risk: Tha present value of e defined benefit plan lablliny is caiculated by refamce to the best estimate of the mortasty of plan particigants hioth
during and after their employment, An increade in the life expectancy of the plan participants wiil increase the plan's lability.

wiil, Salary rish: The gresent vadue of the defined benefit plan liability s calculated by reference o the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
in the salary of the plan participants will increase the pian's liability,

Ho other post-retirement benefits are proviged to these employees,

Thne most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benelt obligation were carried out s at March 11, 2014 oy W/,
Kapadia Global Actuaries | @ firm with fellow of the Institube of Actuaries of India. The present velue of defined benefit obiigation and the related current service
cost were measured using the projected unit credit methad

Description of any amendment , curtallment and settiemants:

These are no changes Inthe benefit schema since the last valution . There aré Ao $pecial event such 83 benefit imorovements or curtadiments or settiements
during the inter valuation period,

The principal assumptions used for the purpeses of the acturial valustions were s follows:
Valu
As at 31.03.2024 As ot 31.03.2023

Discount ratefs)

- Eastern Inwestmant Limitegs 7.20% 7.40%

- The Bisrh Stone Lime Company Limited T.15% 1.30%

= The Orissa Mingrals Developmeent Company Limited 7.30% 1.30%
Expected ratels) of salary Increase

Eastern Investment Limited 5.00%, 5.00Hg

- The Bisra Stane Lirne Company Limited 5.00% 5 00

= The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited 5.00% LA

Withdrawal rale

1% at younger 3% at younger ages
ages reducing to  reducing to 1% at

1% at older ages pider pges

N

« Eastem Investment Limited

-




The Bigra Stone Lime Company Limited

- The Orizsa Minarals Develapsment Company Limited

0.3% at youngar 0.3% at younger
¥ges reducing to ages: reducing
0.2% at oider pges  0.2%: at alder ages

204 at younger 3% al younger ages
ages reducing to reducing ba 1% at

Amspunts recognised in staternent of profit and 1oss In respect of these defined benefits plans are a5 follows:-

Service cost

Current service Cost

Past service cost @nd | gain)/tess from Settiements
Pt inbes g5t axpense

Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement on the net defined benef
labiliby:

Return on plan assets excluding amaunts mcluded
in Interest mcame

Actuarial {gam<)/losses arising from changes in
dempgraphic assumptions

Actuarial [gains}/iosses arising from changes in
fmancial assumptions

Actuarial (gaing)iosses arising from experience
agsumptions

Components of defined banoafit costs
recognised in other comprahensive income

Tatal

1% 81 alder ages aider ages

For the year For the
anded year ended
31.03,.2024 31.03,2023
107.23 11588
172,59 141,75

279.82 261.63
[43.12) (3.47)

13.85 [90.34)
204.38 299.85

175.21 L96.04
455.03 457.67

Thie current sersice cost Bnd the net interest expense for the year are incuded in the "Employee benafits expanse” ling iem In the statement of profit and lass.

The remeasurement of the met defined kabity Is Inchuded in other comprehensive income,
The amaunt Included in the balance sheet arsing from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

March 31, 2023

Present walue of funded defimed benefit obligation

Fair vatpe of plan aisets

et liability arising from defined bencfit obligation

March 31, 2024
Present walue af lunded defined penefit obligation

Fair vahoe of plan assels
Het liability arising from defined benefit obligation

Movermnents In the pressnt value of the defined beneft abligations are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation as at April 1, 2022
Current service cost

Irikerest Cost

Remeasurement [galns \flosses:

Actuaral (Gains)Yosses arsing from changes in
demagraphic assumotions

Actuarial {Gains)/iosses ansing from changes in

financial ASSuMmplions

Past Service Cost

Actuarial {Gains)/Iosses arging from expearience
assumplions

Benelts paid

Closing defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2023
Currant servioe cost

Interest Cost

Remeasurement {gainsllosses:

Actuarial {Gains)/losses ariging from changes in
demographic gssuemptions

Actuarial (Galns)/losses ansng from chanpes in

finpnoal aswemptions

Past Service Cost

Actuariel | Gains)/flgsses arsing from expérienos
assumptions

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2024

Movements @ tha fair vaiue of the plan assets are as follows!

Amount in Rs. lakhs

3, 905,61
(1,147 58}
2,758.02

w
u
~
(=13

=]

R

|

119.EB
211.43

(90,31}
0.ts

289:71
(484
3,905.62
107.2
246.99

t._-

13.98

104,39
554.13
3,924.06




Opening falr valug of plan assets a= at April 1, 2022
Interest incame

Retisrn on plan sssets {excivding amounts includad

N Net interest expenmse)

Contributian from the amployer

Expenses deducted frum the Fund

Benefits paid

Clasing fair value of plan assets as at March 34, 2023
Interast income

Return an plan assets (extiuding amounts incuded

in Net interest expense)

Cantribution from the amployer

Expenses detucted from the Fund

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets ag at March 31, 2024

The fair value of the plan assets for I and averseas pian at the and of the FERQITInG period for each categary | are as follows

Fair value of plan assets &5 Bt

Life Insurance of India

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
1,099.48 1,153.00

Total 1.099.48  11s3.00

wore as follows:

BELE-mmmPummpumlmdrnrthnpurpqulurthnmumjvnhum:ﬁwhnﬂbun Benelits

Gratulty
1,142.18
G359
147
81.53

ElS&.lBE
1,147.5
Ta.41

43.11
3308

{198.68)
1 ]
'.‘_—h._

mrnfie and lnas

The remeasursment of the net defined limbility is included in other comprefisnsive jacome.

Partlcalars |#As at 31.03.2024 (A8 at 31.08. 3023 |
Diseount rateis 7.15% T.30%
Expected razeis) of nalary inereass 4.50% .50,
0.3%  at  younger|0.3% at ToungeT|
Wirhdrawa| rate: fges  reducing  tolages reducing o
0.2% ar alder ages  |0.5% at clier ages
Amounts recogrised in statemens of prodit and loas in respect of these defined benefits plans sre as follows: -
Amount Rs. I Lakhs
For the|
Particulnss For the year year ended
ended 31032024, A1.03.2023
Bervice cosl
Cursent semics cost 611 PR
Net Value of mnasurement on the ohiigatio and plag (3 1H 3480
ALRECLH
et interest expense 17.97 LEag
Components of defined beneft costs fecogmised
(in prafit or boss az.98 67.55
Femeasurement on the ner defined benefit Linbulitw:
Return on plan assets =xcluding emounts included
in Hierest income
Actuntial (gaine) onses arining from chsnges i
demagraphic sssumptivns
Aciuarial (gains)/ losses arising frem chasnges in
linancial ansum pdions LA ] .88y
Actuarial {prinal/ losses aristng from experience
RBELmptions 13.90) 24 18
Componeats of delined beneflt costs recopnised
in other comprehensive nvome 13- 11) 34,60
Total 29.87 _lo2.1s
10 warmen BETISE L mii LHE O furresy CAEILEC jur wne FOUr mre e lsuest BN oLt :.ﬂlp“.l"{l:l’ R a4 [ FE ﬂm aog e m Lo aaicine w

The amaoun? inchudod in 1he balance sheet Arixing frum the entity's ohligation in respect of As defined tenefit Pians bs as follows:

Amount Bs. in Lakhs
P i AR

As at F1.03. 3024

Fresent value of unfunded defined benefit eliligatiog B
Fair value of plan asseis -
{Nut Hnbility wrising From defined beaefit

ehligntion | 247.47
Movements in the present saiue af the defined benefit ohligutions mre as Tollows:
Amonunt Rs. in Lakha

As at 31.03.2023

Present vukue of funded defined benefi ohdigation Hra.5]
Fair vilue of plan dasets i
Met Lnbility arising from defised benefit

|ohilgatian 264.51




| Mevemenis in the present value of the defined benelit obligations are s fellows:

Amount R, in Lakhs

Closiag defined benefit cbligation as at March
a1, 023

Current service cosl

Interes) Cont

Remeasurcinent {gains | lnsses

Actwilrial {Orins] | losses arismng frem changes in
drmographic assumptions

Acnazrial [Gains) insses grsmng from changes in
financial assumplicns

Past Bervice Coml

Actunrinl {inina) (osses arinmng fmm sxpersnce
sl lvone

Henelils pued by an ontity

Claaing defined bemefit obligation as at March
31, x4

264,31

LE.11
L7497

e

3.5
(9003}

247.45

Amount Ks, i Lakhs

Closing defined benefit obligstion =s at March
a1, 2022

Curreiil seavies et

Imeres) Cost

F ement [gams)

Actuarial [Bains) ) losscs arsing from changes in

demographic saaumplinas

Actuntinl {mins/ beses arising from changes in

nancisl ssumpions

Pant Beivie Cost

Armuarial (Cains] ) loxses arising from expenenoe
A pLicns
Henefits paid by an cotify

Closing defined beasBt cbligation as at Mareh
21, 2023

20.64
123

19-%58)

44 18

3083

264 81

Mavemnenis in the fair value of the plan assets are as Inllows:

Amount Rs, In Lakha

Opening value of plan assets

inbtoncsl I

Return on plan assets (excluding nmounts inchided
10 nol interest expeTies|

Cantrbution from the e ploger

Benefits pad

Expenses deducied Eru the Fund

Closing value of plan assets

For the|
For the year year ended
ended 31.03. 2024 31.03.2023

The fair valur of (he plan assets for [ndia and oversess plan m1 the end of the reporting period lor each cotegooy, are ks faliows

Fulr valne of plan sssets s nt

Asat 31.03,2034  As at 31.03.2023

Expected Future Cashilows |Undlscmanted|

Particulars Rs %
Year | Cashlow L33 63,254 S6.00 %
Year 3 Canhilow 21,935,180 B.30%
Yeur 3 Chaskillow 38,04, T4 L6 L%
Year 4 Cashilow 32,7503 13,50
Year 5 Cashibow 13,75.996 S
Yoar & o Year 10 Cashilow 35,41,786 15.00%

Privilege Leave Benefits were as follows:

BSLC - The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the acturial valuations for Half

Withdrmwal mmie:

0.2% ot micldle ages
and .1% a8 clderjand
ages

Particulars Asmt 31,03.2034  |As st 31,03.2023
Discount s 7. 15% 7308
Expected ratels) of naliry inerease 5,00% 5.00r%

0.3% sl younger|0.3%m @i younger
ages reducing  tojages  reducing W
0.2% a1 middle agcs

0.1% at ohier

ages

¢¢
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Amoiints recogtised o statement of profit and [ogs in respect of these defined benefits plans are wa follows:-
Ameunt Rs. in Lakhs
For The
Pasticalars For the your yeur ended
ended 31,030,204 31,0:3.2023
Service coat
LaTeEnt servier coss 2.5G RE )
| et Value of sieisiirement an the wblygiis and plan 6721 e
LR
fiet interes] expense 1.a7 - J,44
Compensats of defined benefin costs recognised
1h profit or loss |3 |'l-,_g_1
Femessurenient on the pet defined et liabibitys
Feturn on plan assets exchuding amounts inchsded
in interest income
Aurtuarial (pinm] /lossss mrising from changes in
demogrphic ansumptions ¥ i
Actuarial fgninal/ lneses wrsing from changes 1o
fimancml assumptions 0.o9 1 1.0HE)
Actunrial |gains)/ loases frining from experenos
REBLUMpLO NN 16809 (13.64
Componeats of defined bonefit costs recognised
im other comprehensve income 18.71) [14.73]
[retal 9.77) [24,13)

A I SR Y I CR R W T INePes eXPeise suf LI Yewr Wi Hiudey (1w mphu_vu_: uenEE URPETESE  aay e 6 urie LT TETHT ST T
it e Gham

The remeasuremen: of the not defiund Hubility |8 inchuded in ather comprelensive ingore.

The minoont ineleded in the balafce sheet arsing from the enticy's obligatan in respect of its definsd Benehie Pladin im oo foblows

Amount s ln Lakhs

As at 31.03.2024

Friment value of unfunded defned benefit ohligntion 14.19
Falf valoe of jean ansetn

Net liability arising from defined benefit
|ebligation %1

Muvements in the presens value of the defined bensf olsligation sre s fallows:

Amount Bs. in Lalhs
r— 0 W
As at 31.03.2023

Present value of unfunded dofined Beschii ohligatian

17.24
Farr value of plan asss=ta
et tabllity arising from defined beaufit

oo 17.24

Movements in the present value of tin defined bepeft obligatiane are as follows:
Amoant Rs. in Lakhs|

Clesing deflued benefit sbligution as ot March

bosgos 1724
Current service cont 2.59
Irierest Coas Lo7

Kemicasurement (gans|/ iosses:

Artunrsal (Gans/ lusses ansing from changes in
demmginphic nssumptions

Actuasial (Goonsl/ baases arising rom chrnges oy
|financial sssumpticns 0.09
Prast Service Cost

Aetusrial (Gakim) flosses arising from experience

| ustments Fe-8]
Henefils pasd

Cloning defined benefit chligetion as &t March 14.20
31, 2024

Amount Rs. in Lakks

Clasing defined benefit obiigation as at March

31, 2022 26.64
CHEivnl service cout 389
Interesl Cost [FCT

Remeasurement [gninsg | losses:

Actuarial [Cams) /issaes arising from chang=s i
demagraphic assumphions

Actuarin] {0sdne] /lasses mrising fram changes i
flanncial assumptions

sl Seriee {om

{ 1.5

Actuinrial [Dains) {losses ansing from EXprTIEnCE
adjuslments

Henelils pnsd

Closing defined benefit chligation s at March
a1, 2023

(BRY-TT

e

17.24

o P

Fa o .
I ' i
e
B
W,
b




Amoust Rs. ln Lakhs
Muvoments in the fair value of the plan assecls are as folows:

Far the
For the year year ended
wnded 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Opning value of pleo aasets = .
Inldrest ineame B 5
Heturn om plan assets rdluding amounis inclyded
in mel intereat edprose) " +
Contratsution frogm the emplover -
Benedits paid g *
Expenses deducted from the Fund ' .
Closing value of plas sssets - =
The [nir valiee of the plan assess for fodia gnd oversess plan ar the end af the reparting pericsd for each category, are as follows
Falr vulue of plag wesets ma st
Az ut J1.OS.2024  As at 31.03.2033
Tazal B =
ed Fature Cashflows (Undiscoun ted)
Partioul Rs B
Year 1 Cashflow 81,563 7500
Year T Cashilow 1,32, 605 5.00%
Year 3 Canhilow T.70,2683 31 70%
Yedr 4 Caghfaw 3,93.43) 16.20%
Year 5 Cashilow 50,527 4. 10%
Vear 6 5 Year 10 Cashilow 3,533,676 TR




Easlern Investments Limited
Nobes fo bha Cobsclidated Financel Statemants

34-35 - Financial lnstruments

34.1 Categories of financial Instruments Amount i ks Lakhs
An ot Ag at
Financial Assats : &

Madgured st far vaiua through profil gr less (FYTBL)
[a} Mardaterily messired

(i} Bther investmants 236.95 132,60
Maasured &l Bmarised cost
{a) Cash and cash equivalents BIT 4t 74185
[b) Bank bafance other thin cash end cash eguivaloms 2,031.01 LML 7%
{b] Qrhar ireestrents -
(b} Trade receivabis 82788 T 15
|} Loans -1 372
) Opher fnancil ascats b At 3 2450
19, .
Financial Liahiites PEEAE
Mexneod ar amemed oot
{21 Trade oavabies LTIrAT BESTS
101 Qther linarcial labaties 8,002 48

— e N
_symes  sivido

34.1 Financisl risk managemen abjectives

The Company’s principal finaacial Ieslruments comprisa financial iabilites and finandal assets. The Comasny's’ princpal N i Babildles tomprises trace payabie a~d othar
finansial Ssbiities, The main purposs of these financisl nuruments i Lo manage short-term cask Mow #0d raise fnance for Eve Company's capital experciture grograrn, The
Company has virous Tinanoial assers fuch 35 (aca receivable Brd cash and shar-teem deposils, which arlse cirschly fhem its cosratons.

Risk exposures and responses

The Campeny manages its axposure Lo key frnancial nsks in accorsance with the Company's financial risk manggement policy. Tha oijective of the policy ts to suppart the deivery of
tha Company's Amancial targets white protecting future financial secunty. The maun risks that could agvarsely alFect t%e Company's financial gsests, liabsities or future cash flows see
markal rikg, compraing temMocty prica figk, cash Fow interest rate risk and fareign currency rik and liquidity «ish and treda risk, Hanagemend meviems snd agraes polices fe
Managing aACn &f thede rivks whach are summariced Delow

The Soard of Direcees reviews and agrees poiicies for managing sach of thase peks which s Semmarised belos.

34.3 Markel risk

Markal fisk is the mik teat the fair vaiue of Fubure cash fams of & financial instruement wdl Nuctuate becsuse of chamges in mérket prces. The Company's Hnancial nstrument Makes
prices comqriie theee types of nak: currency rsk, interest rete ridk ard other price vk whieh schide Equity price risk and commodity price risk, Financial imtrumants 3fTsctad by
market rish INCwds oaas, frade receivables, cthar fnancial assats, trade payables and grhar fingncial abiltes.

The sensitivity analysas hive not been prepared & tharg i NG AMOUSL outstanding a5 debs, Paving either fived or floating Interest rales, no derwatives Nrancal instruments and no
finsniisl instnemants in forggn currercies,

34.4 Farslgn currency risk

The Compény does not undartake @ny transaction in foreign currancy, onsequertly, EApIELES [0 exchange rate fMuctuation coss nof aase. The Company has all erdered all the
Transsctin In eurmency which is the finctional curmenty and acoordingly: the fireige turnency risk has basn minimised to & wery low leval

Fargign cusresty sensmwity analvis has rol bewn perfermed considering tra Ta<t (Mat there will not be ary impact of the profit or foss of e Compasy, as theve ase no Moresgn
CurrEnDy Mnetary s

4.5 ratie rish a
Inbarest raie rak i 108 rick that (he fair walue or futorg casnlews of @ Francial isstrumant will Mucuste becawse of CRENGS IN kel interest rates. As tha Company doas not Rave
ENy DOrroeIngs 1N 15 102 & SHLaNL expodune £D the ictamest rate rsk but only to the extent of recognition interest partian of financal instrurent classfies ar ameetised cost. The
Campany manages it intarest rise expodure reliting o the financa® @sirument clessified at smertised cost by iing the marioet interast rate as the effective interest rase and e
changes in e asuets liabiities = accowntad for as interest income/ Bxpanses with respest & finsndal assatsMinancial bailtes respectivaly,

Homan, g4 thete b no primanry eepotuns o e inDeneSt sate rak e SENSiely analyss has not bean performad by the Company,

34.6 Qiher price risks
mmmummwmmtnhq:n|ndudunqu|trmmkm:mm:ypqmmmmmﬂrhﬂﬂimmmw:funh-uumgwrpmm
WRNSUNEY EnalyEs on the profit dus CRANgEs i eguily prices has been porformed beiow:-

34.6.1 Equity price sensilivity analysis

Tha Company's lsted and nor-ited equty secLntiss are susceptible ta markat price risk asising Tram uniceriainties atout future values of the Inestmant seoenties. The Comnoany
mandges e equily prioe sk by placing limsts oo indivigusl aed tokal equety mstrumants which (s made suhject b the epproval of Boand of Directors. Repons on the squity portfolo
are sabmitted 1o the Company's senigr management on @ meguias basis. The Company's Board of Diractors reviews snd spproves all sguity investment decislang. Bt the reparting
@kte, the miposure 10 Unksiad S0y SECUTTiEs was A, 415,95 1BkNS (ngluding investrient in Joink yertLes at Cost Bendunting ta Re: 28110 lakhs. The sersilmity soalyxis bassd on
tha sfpety proe mak al the end of the repeeting pense To- the mvestmant n these @ity securibes othar than Investmant in joing venkure & glvan baiow -

34.7 Crodit rich managEnent

Tre Compeny trades ealy witn recogiised, creditwarthy third paries ang enly on sdvance payment bask, Tt 5 the Company's policy that all customsers who wish t rack are
raguired 1o pey the entire amount in advance The Company does not parceive ary risk of default as thare & e instance of credit salg, In acditon, recswable balances ar
manitored 20 an oagoing basis, with the result that the Comoany's exposurs (o Dad debdls |s not

WIEh respact Lo credil resk arising From the: athar financial assets of the Company, which comanse cesh, bank balances, shorm:term sivestments and other receivabies, the Compam's
EADIsLE b0 Crecid o5k arises from default of the countemarty, with 8 maximum exposure egual 1o the carrying amoent of thaes imstriments. Refar to Mot 15 for snalyes of trade
recenebles agang

3d.8 Liguidity righ management

The Company has huge imvstment in term deposits with aanks and has suffcient cwmed funds &0 linens s exisheg and continwng commitments.  Mew irestmeants and sdvances
arg teely to be funded siméasty, Majer Capital mvestments, IF any, wowld be Tunded by throwgh the terms deposits end furtker requiremant of any wit be addressed through 11 uge
ol par overgrafts ard bank foans, The Campary has deposited signfcans #meunt in term depesits and have sufficeat hunds required 1o maet the guidiey reguinements of the
Companmy ane acgardingly the Campany has not applied for ary shart-term Rranceng facaties

The tabte elow summarizes. the matunty profite of the Comaany’s Fnanclal feosties bated on pontractual undicountod paymants.

34.8.1 Liguldity and interest rigk Lablas

The followesg table detsils the Company's gepected maturity for i£3 non-derivative Nrancal assets with sgreed rmoayment paciods. The table has been drawn based on the
unciscounted conpragtual maturities of firancal sssets including inferest thet will be aarnad an those assets. toe indusion of Informalan an mon-cervative Pashcal ssssts
feceishry In order io undénstand the Comoany™s Fquiddy risk management as the touidity s managed an @ ned assel and habiley basis

Expected maturity for Nam-darivative financial assets

e Amount Be. in lakhe

Walghtad Legs than 1 | 1-3 months | 3 months to 1 1-5 years 54 yuars Tokal Careyhng
|awErage manth yaa Amount
effective
interest

March 31, 3033

Mgn intgresl beanng

) Trada rgcamvables - G.E7 77550 1AL M_@

B Loans - - v FET] . 7.7

L2} Oher finarcisl assats - . (5 s 1,402 163.88 % a% EE

Iu' Crogr Dnysstmest - - - 18300 19 1

L




welghted Less than 1 | 1-3months | 3monthsto 1 | 1-5 years 5+ years Total Carrying |
aversge month year Amount
elfective
Intgrest
= 0.67 5 2. o.47 B37.0¢
. : : ] ¢ A
L B&0. B8 4.74 1. 404,23 —5'*%‘1 1 84|
= - = 236.95 | 55 236,05

The Follaweg table details the Company's neménning contactual maturity for its noa-geivative finsnoial Babilties with agread FERayment periscs. The table hac besn driwa. babed
QN the unisoounted cashfiows of financial labilities based on the sarliest date an which the Comaany can be requined to pay. The tabig inciude BeEh inberest snd principal cashfigus.
Thig contractual meturity = besed on the earliost date on shach the Company may be required to pay.

Expected matierity for Mon-derivative financial labilities

. I lakhs
[weightod [Less than 1 | 1-3 months |3 months fo 1 |1-8 years 5= years Total Carrying
Elw maonkh year Amount
| effective
i
March 31, 3033 1
-l by 1 -
&) Trade oaya [] - - 33,38 -1 = 685.75 GHE.T
] Bither finarcial habadities I - - B, 815.78 L5148 J14.01 Imig
March 31, 2024 1
B« peres] besmng E
FYRiT E!ﬁgﬁ = f - 23 150457 | 1,737.47 | L7
[ nancial liabil ] - - 7,20 54 fﬂl:l.;‘ﬁ 000248 48
35 Fair valee
A5.1 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and |abEHities that are measured at fair value o a recurrlng basis
Fal Falr value |Valustion
Financial ascets and financial liabitities A5 o As at| hierarchy |technigues and
31.03.2023|  31.03.2023 levels key Inputs
Queted bid
&) Inwestmaals i matual Pund B9 7.2 Level -1 |pricess in an
active markad
Quoted B
B} Investments o Bguty insremEets {austed) 22785 184 65 Level -1 |pricess in an
Ective marke:
INCOME: PpaCach
in this approach,
| the discounted
cashiflow method
g used 10
capture the
) InwRELmants A ggaily inslrements [unguoted) #3627 436.3% | Level- I |oresent value of
thi expectad
‘Puture econamic
!bunul‘-'u ta be
canwed fram the
cranership of the
| I LTRRE,
[ 673.17 61834

35.2 Fair value of the financisl assets and llabliities that are not measured at falr value (bt Talr value disciosures are reguired}
Tha distliture relstsng bo the Fair value of Rnancial aseets and Gabiides that are messured at othar than fair value is Aol nequired as the managamant of the comaany determaed
that the rareying amounts of such Sisets ang llab@zies approvimanss their fair valises
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Eastern Investments Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 - Related party transactions

A) Parent company
(8] Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited

B} Subsidiary company
(&) The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

(o] The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd,
{c) The Borrea Coal Co. Ltd. (In Liguidation) Ordinary Shares

C) Other Associates in which Shares are held
(a8} The Karanpura Deveiopment Co. Ltd, {under liquidation)
(B} The Burrakur Coal Co, Ltd. {under iguldation)

D) Key Managerial Personnal:
(@) Shri Puspen sarkar
{B) Shri S Raja Babu
{c) Shri D.K. Mahanty
() Shri ALK. Bagchi
(2} Shri 5.C.Pandey

36.1 Eastern Investments Limited

CFO from 11th August' 2022 onwards
C5 from 11th Nov2022 onwards

MD from 01.08.2019 10 20.06.2023
MD from 21.06.2023 to 23.01.2024
MD from 24.01.2024 onwards

36.1.1 Trading transactions Amount in Rs. lakhs
During the year, The Company entered inta the followlng trading transactions with related parties
For the| Forthe year
year anded ended
Related party Mature of transaction 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
; | . \Board Mesting Expenses = :
{2} Rashiriya Ispat Nigam Limited Salary of Deputed Em e FEE 10962
LB} The Orissa Minerals Development Company Dividend Received - -
Ltd, Co-Sharing Expenses paid - 383.29
Meeking Expenses ¥ =

{c) The Bisra Store Lime Company Limited

Co-Sharing Expenses

The following balances were gutstanding at the end

of the reporting periog

Amounts owed by fowed

Related party Nature of transaction te Reluted parties as at
As at As at
31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
{a) Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited Salary of Deputed Employees 172.66 109.82
{b] The Orissa Minerals Develcpment Company Lid - & 3
{c) The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited -
36.1.2 Compensation of Key Management personnel
The remuneration af directors and other members of key management parsonnel during the yvear are as follows:
For the| For the year
year ended ended
Related party 31.03.2024 3.2023
Shri B Kundu (olg Dues) 1.01 1.01
hort-t fits Bt
Short-term banefi Shri Puspen Sarkar 1857 73.43 ]
36.1 The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd.
36.2.1 Trading transactions
During the year, The Company entered into the lollowing trading transactions with related parties
For the For the year
year ended anded
Related party Nature of transaction 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
| Commegn expenses borna by Holding Company 9.90 9.80
Dividend Paid -
fal ' 5 Advance for director nomination fees received - =
2} Eastern Investmenss Limited Advance for director nomination fees returned =
Advance for EIL's director nomination fees deposited - *
Advance for EIL's director namination fees refunded - -
- Reimbursement of expenses [0.06% {138.43)
ri I
(b} The Blsra Stane Lime Company Limlbed Cusat hause ReAt Bxpense - =
Salary of Deputed Employees (151.24) [371.67)
Sale of Material {8,982.07}| (10,037.02)
™ ] sraiicBl Bt Bl
{c) M{s Rastriya Ispat Migam Limited Earnest Money Depost (1389 (13.89)
Rent of AG-104, 2nd FI alt Lake, Kolkata (4581} (4.86)

The fallowing balances were gutstanding at the end

of the reporting pariod .

A o

Amounts owed by /owed
to Related parties as at

N

7.



HThe remuneration of directors and other members af ke

36.2.2 Compensation of Key Managamant Personnel

[ As at As at
Related party Mature of balance 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
a) Eastern Investments Limited Commeon Expenses ab Corporate Office 8.52 9.52

Oid Loan, Hiring Charges, Deputationist Emplyee's (26.06) (26.12)
{b) The Bisra Stane Lime Company Limited and man nsec at Corporate Office 4

Guest House Rent pavable

Rent of AG-104, Znd Flogr, Salt Lake, Kolkata 18.81 -

’ Trade Advance { inglyding Intergst) (19191.35) {10209.28)

() M/5 Rastriya Ispat Nigam Uimized Earnest Money Depasit {13.89% (13.89

Salary af Deguted Employees (504.732) (353.48)

y management personnel during the year are as follows:

Amount in Lakhs

Forthe | For the year|
year ended ended
Related party 31.03.2024 | 31.03,2023
Shart-term benefits 3.75 3,75
Post Emplaymant Henelits z z
Dther Long term benefits -
Share based payments £5 1
Termination benefits - =
36.2.3 Loans to related parties
As at As at
31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
Loans o key management personngl - -
36,3 The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
36.3.1 Trading transactions
During the vear, the Company entered into the following trading transactions with related parties. Rs. In Lakhs
For the year| For the year
ended onded
Ralated party Nature of transaction 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
[} Eastern Investments Limited Tnterest on Loan from ElL or.7T 83.45
Eales of Dolomite 1959.00/ 1493.21
) . o Tradle advance adjusiea during the year 249,28 182.15
{b} Rashtriva lspat Nigam Limited Tai_or rade advance 247,51 533.73
Salary of Deputed Employees 70.78 86.38
[c) The Orissa Miperals Development Company Gueet House gien on rc.n!. oy BOLE .00 11231
Limied Misc puyment made during the year 4.05 0.00
Adwance gi___vt‘]‘l by BSLC 26.06 48
[d) KMFP's KMFs Salary,PF & other Fund and bebefizs 16.50 14.83
The fallowing balances were gutstanding at the end of the reporting period Rs., In Lakhs

Amounts owed by/owed to
Related purties as at

As at As at
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Related party Mature of transaction
|a] Eastern Investments Limited Borrowings from ElL and [nterest Accrued & Due to EIL 2,663.70 2,455.93
Trade Receivable 265.06 235.89
o s 5 Trade Advance 3,496.68 3,745.97
(b Rashicriya iapas Nigam Limite Interest on Trade advance 347.51 33372
Ealary of Deputed Employees 157.16 -
|&} The Orissa Minerals Development Compny Common Expenses reimbursed to OMDT = .
Limited Receivable 26.06 45.00
|t} Key Management personnel Salary & Provident Fund 14.08 lﬂﬂ
. gk, A K Shukia | Independent Director) -Sitting fees
36.3.2 Director's Remuneration for attending Board Meetings 0.23 0,13

36.3.3 Compensation of Key Munagement personnel

The remun=ration of directors and other members of key man

ent personnel during the vear are as follows:

ey
For the year| For the year
Related party ended ended
$1.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Fiori-term beneiits 12.50 11.64
Pou: Employment benelits 4.00 3.18

Ngte: Compensation payable to Shri Puspen Sarkar , CF

RINL {uftimate holding company) and also the compensation
BELC as his share of cost of employment is baing bormed by the

is originally posted.

0 has been censidered In
of Shrl Pintu Biswal ,

_I_-_-:f-'-—-::-'-"'-..":w.
fonalia g

A

the category of Salary of Dedputed Employees from
S has not been conskdred in KMP's remunaratian of
Eastern Investments Company Limited (EIL-holding company) whene he
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Eagtern Investments Limited
Kotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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71z

ara

Amount in Rs. lakhs
A7 - Contiegent Liabilities

Clalms against the Company not acknowledged as debts  As ot 31,03.2024 &5 st 31.03.2023

1 Tncome Tax Tribunal Cass a -
) Ddmes Sasesy Tax 15.21 3340
3 Artitration Cases - -
4 Income Taw, Service Tax, VAT, Entry Tax 458 27 368,54 -
-] Others 6,608, 58 6,830.E7
& Providant Fund Clam - 103.09
7 Audit Commities nat farmed 4,00 400
B Mutation Cost of 49,19 Acre @ Rs. 15000/ per acre 7.38 7.H
5 Legal 2,550036 7,385 04
10 Intenest against judicial award - -
11 Site Reclaimation 14B0 44 1,480.44
1z L:::;Es';]w MRS k(e 180,183,487 186,061.84
13 Stamp Outy Claims 15,366.94 4,526,556
14 Rent & Cess on land Revenue 110054 103.34
15 DOM Rourkala 3,201 68 3,281.68

15 Bank Guaranteses 1,594 81 7,305.55
) 212,140,384 132,492 80

Piotas;
EiL
EH

_Fent and Cess on Land Revenue
Lawrence Jute Mill Co. Ltd was a company under the erstwhile BIRD & CO. LTD, This comapny had 76.77 Acres of land at Chackasimouza- Bauria oIl Mg fn
the P.5 Saurta, Dist: Howrah, W_B. The company acquired 27 58 Acres of 189d in The year 1975 uner the provisien of Sec 8(3) of W State Acgulsition Att 1553
The name of the Jute MIll was subseguently changed to Lawrance Investment & Property comapary Ltd woe f 09121970, In 1982 Lawrance Investment &
Fragesty comapary Lte alongwith fiue other companies were dissolved and amalgamated with EiL, which iz a comapny undar erstwhile BIAD Group, by virtue
of ordes of tha Company Law Board under the provision of Sec 386 of the Comapanies Act vide Mo: 50/688E dated 04,09 1584, By virtia of this order al
peaperties and asset moluding rights and interest as well as Gabdities of Lawrance Investmient & Property comapny Lid were vested in EIL. The change af
name of the owner of the property from Lawrance lavestinent & Property comapny Lid to EIL on the basis of the order of amalgation is yet to be effected, e
the progerty |5 not yat mutated inthe name of EIL,
The company had gaid fent and Cass on Land Aevenue on Lawrence Property at Bauris @ RS, 012 peryear 1 31,03 2001 with the office of the Revenue
Inspector. The compary had nat scoepted the substantial incresse in changes from 2001-02, therefore continued to provide lizbibity an the basis of claims
recetved Loia the finantial year 2008-08. From the Financial Year 2008 -10 anwards , tha kabitty hes been stsrted booking in tha tontingent liahilizy , which
amounts to 3. 190,54 Lakhs &5 on 31.03,2024.
Furthes letter rof feo EiLfLawrence Property/01 dated 14-03-2018 has been lisued 10 Bioth Land & Land Reform Office with a copy te District Land & Leand
fgfarm Office and Director of Land Records & Sarvice . It has been reguested in the fetter to provide tha Lend Tax dues by BLELRD for paymenl by EIL and
al5a requested to conskder the compensation Fo the fand scquired by the-Govt of WE which iTyet to be received in accordance with the judgement paised by
Additlonal Destrict Judge. Subsequently anathed letter dated 05-04-2018 issued 1o Additional District Magistrate [LR) & DLLAD, Govt. of Wiest Bengal with 3
copy bo Princyad Secretary and Land Reforms Commissianer, Gavt. of Wes: Sengal requesting 1o expedite the matler.
Subreguently. infarmation throwgh AT Act has beon sought on 11-Jun-18, wherein (¢ has been asked the due Land Tax lor 43,19 acres and whether any notice
for the same has been issued by the department. A reply was received on 28 06.2013 on the BT| Agplication which states the Tollowing Quote” The mattes of

realisanion of land rewenoe in case of sabiect fand does nok sfise and a3 such there is no question of raiing dermand of land revenue in respect of said land”
| immsirita
Share P

There is demand from Addtional Commissicnar of Stamp Revenue Gout of West Bangal for Rs 545 Lacs a4 regardy transfer of sharas frem Prasigent af India
b The Drissa Minerals Develsgment Comgany Led [OMDC) and The Bisra Stane Lime Company Lid {B5LC} te Eastern Investments Ld|£1L} 1o make BSLC and
O#ADC subsidaries of EIL The transaction is exempted from Stamp duty and the 1ame is eommunicsted to Sddtional Inspector General of Registration and
Addticnal Commissioner of Stamp Revenue West Bengal vide Letter No EILJAS/STAMP DUTY/10-2012/01 deted 17th Oct 2012 by the authorised signatory of
ElL. A there is no response to the letter of the Company Gl date, the amount of Rs. 58.45 lacs ks shown as contingent liability, Further correspandents was
made with the Dy. Secretary, Finance (Revenus) Dept, Govt of W8, on 23.02.2018 with & reminder on 1004, 2018 Subsaguently two lotters were ssued en
1007 2018 and on 34.05.2019, 16,08 2021,28.02 2021 and Z8.02. 2073 but no respanse s been received Ll finalisation of this Balsnce Shees.

(e} intome Tas
Fncome tax demand in respect of AY. 2009-10 and AY, 2030-11 amountng 1o Rs 101.66 lakhs has nat been deposited as the cases sre pending with
Appeakiate Authority of the incomaTex Depariment

(0 £11 Penatty far i
For not complying with section 177 regarding farmation of Audit committes , minimurm RS, 1 lac and maximum As, 5 lacs penalty may be Imposed aon EIL .
Priwision fet Ra. 1 lacs has been provisoed in the boaks of s2eaunts and balance R4 l3cs (s being inchuded In the Contingant Liability head,

(il Mutation Cost of 49,19 acrs ol Land at Chackasi , Bauria . Howrah as per the Gewi of Wiest Bengal Notification is As.7 38 Lacs

(iif) &= per section 203(3) of Companies Act 2013 3 whole time Ky Managerial Persoanel thall not halld office In more than one company in its subsidiary
compary at the sama time  In the Fy 2021-12, C5 & CFO of subsidiary company (PMDC) had been holding additional charge in the Holding comgpany , which
Is contrediction of provision . &5 per provision , minimum ane lakh snd masimum S Lakhs penatty may be impated on EIL Rz, 1 Liskh has been provide in the
books and balance Bs. 4 Lakks have been considered as Contingent lsbaty.

Dther information :

Ezitern Investments Limited is. & NBFC Campany, A5 per RB! Revised Guidelines on Entry Palnt Norms, Princioal Business criteria [PBZ), a company to be
registerad as NBFC should fulfl bath & ltedia {the assets and the Incame Fattern bazed on the last audited fnancial statament] for showing Financial activity
a4 Principal Bugingss, which could mat be comahed with by EIL

Claims against OMDC not acknowleged as debt inchudes:

& Legad Casas comstitute RS 2550.36 Lakhs from 2. no: Aa) to {ml. Claimie of eantesctors for sup phy of materials/zervices are pending with arbetration; tourts
which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. it is sxpected that the witimate offeome o] e peo eedings will be in favour of the Company and will
nt hawe gny mateial agverse effact on the Company's finsenciad pasition and res ,- surtt shown above are aparoximate and not
crystallized on the date of reporting of accounts :




b Dt of the total claim of Odishs Govt. towardi demand for SFMEL Leases slongwith with Interest amounting As. 1.80,182.17 Lakhs have besn shown in 51
hées |B) a5 the cases are pending in different courts of faw.

€. Bank Guarbntes is glven ta indian Bureau of Mines, DSPCE & Baltarani lrrigation Divisian Ry, 1094 81 Lakhs {51 Mo C)

d. For Demand from wariows statutory suthorities Sowards income tax, sales tay, excise duby, custom duty, Service tax, antry ta and other gowernment levies
fov 33751 lakhis snd Re_26.21 fakhs respactively 35 per sl. Ao, (E] & {F). The Company (s contesting the demand with appellate suthorities, it s expected that
the ultimate outcome of these pracsedings will be in favour of the Company and will not have ey material aduerse offect on the Compsny's Fnancial positian
and results of operatson. Site Reclaimation charges of Rs, 145044 Lakh & shown in 51 Na. (D],

. Pursiant ta the amendmants of the Onissa tand Reforms A2, the Sub-Collector. Champua had zerved a Notice agalnst theLompany for afleged
unauthefized pasiession of 10,79 acres of leasehold fand on the ground that the said land belongs to Adivasis and ased on that, the Bevenus Inspector asked
QRO to vacate the fand. The Company filed an appesl before the Addl, Distrct Magistrate but the aapeal ws not aliowed. During Apeil, 1898 the Company
filed & writ applicatian and obtained Stay Order from the Hom'ble High Court of Orista to maintain the status guo abgut the possession of the land untl
further crder. Na specific liability could be ancertained,

F. Stsemp Duty, Regitration Charges, NEY & other Statutory Payment will be made at the time of executing supplementary Lease Deed after having afl
statutory ciearances of around Rs. 19707.90 Lac for all three OMDOC Leases as shown in [F)and (G).

§ OMELC haz challenged the two ordars of NCLT dated 10.3.20 befare MOLAT, New Dethiin the matter of M/'s Jal Balaji industries Led against petition filed wufs
%ol 180, 2016, The judgement is in OMOC Fawaur and the case i In foroe In Kolkata High Court,

Claims agalast BSLC not sckrowleged as débt indwdes:

{1} 12} Demand of Rs. 93,17 Lac |Rs.93.17 Lat] In respect of Odisha Sales Tem and Odisha Entry Tax, challenged in appeal against which a sum of f5.57.96 Lac

[R5 5796 Lac| s deposited with tha Sales Taw Authority None of the cased have been settled and BSLE has also fited an appication for refund of the deposited
amauni of A5.57 96 Lacs with The Commercial Tax Department and which is umder process. No further communrication is recessed fowards Datance of Ry 1521
Lac [Rs.35.21 Lac) and hence I is considerad as cantingent liability 1l such time it is setteled

{1} 0] The Sovernment had netfied for increase of stamp cuty for executng lease deecs @ 15% vede indien Stamps | Qdisha Amendement ACt2013 ard Aules
2023} Accordingly the Govt. of Osisha demanded Rs 09,42 Crote far renewal of mining lease. BSLE has filed wrlt befare Ddisha High Court challanging the
above said notification and demmand vide WP | C | case No 15307/2013 dated 08/07/2013 which is panding till date. The Hon'ble High Court of Odisha has
given " STAY" on the aperation of above said notification which continues till date. In the maantime BSLC has made registration of renewal of mining |este
for two lease period | e 2000-2030 & 2020-2040 by paying the stampduty @ 5% which is comaleted by the Registration department and duly signed by the
Cellector, Sundergarh as per details giwen below: (1) Reglstratian Ne 377 dated 30.3.7016 for the lease pericd 01.03.2000 te 31.03.2930, The stamp duty paid
s 6,14, 28,672 If Govt ordered to pay the balance, then 8505 ka5 10 pay the differential mount of As 1228 Crore | 15% -5M), (2] Registration Mo 592 dated
301.06. 2020 for the period of §1.4.2020 te 31.03.2040. The stamp duty paid Rs 4,00,43, 578, 1 The Govi will ordes to pay the balence amount, then B5LC has 1o
pay the differential amount of fs 8.2 Crore. S0 the totsl ifferential amount will be Rs 2056 Crove. So if the demand persist, then BSLE will pay maximam 1o
the amount of Rs 20.56 Crore - 50 we may take (e contigent liability of Rs 20,56 Crore Instead of RS 99.42 Crore

{1 1 2] Providend Fund claim of Bs. 103.09 Lacs have been provided in the books and contingent iability becomes NIL as on 31.03.7024,

{10 1d 185LT recaived 3 notice from Dy Director of Manes Rourkets vide letter no 143 dated 15.01.2015 towards axzes mning of Rs 8,55 04,492 for the period
from 200004 to 2010-11, Subsequently DOM Rourkela revised the demand nd issaed & show cause notioe vide letter ng 3014 dated 15.11,2017 for Az
4,89, 64, 733/ - lar the same period.

B5LC has stated in his reply that the reliance placed on judgmen) passed by the Hon'ble Supreme court dated 02.08.201 7 in Comman Cavse Case far s5uing
the aresent show cause notice with regard to afeged excess production with respect to Mining plan and consent Lo operate i mispiaced. it 2 submitted that
the said pdgment did not deal with the issue of alleged excess production with respect to Mining plan and consent to operata.

DM reised the demand by considering the highest production from EC/MP/CTO from she period from 2000-01- to 2010-11, But a3 per Supreme Court croar
It will be cadculated as pir EC only. Hence BSLE revised the calculation and repiied the show cause notice vide letter on dated 15.12 3017 by calculating the
eni8is production taking only EC quantity. Hence as per BSLC calculation the final desmard arount arrived for As 8,07, 96,051/ which has already been
provdeed (n the Books of Atcount snd the bakande of Bs. 128180 Lacs (Fs A089.55 Lacs -Rs 307 96 Lacs) has been kept in contimgent liabiliy. Na demand/
correspandance in this regaed hiave besn comimunicated to BSLC since then. In view of enhance EC permissibie guantity since 2010-11, there is no scope of
increase im guantity by the company.

{1 &) & work arder was issued to the contractor on 34, 10.2010 to provide security servires raund the clock at the different places of mings . After
terminatiaon of work order , the agarcy sulsnitted the final bills of Rs. 89 .81 Lakhs. Rs, 11 Lakhs was paid to the agency leaving a pending amount of Az, 6881
Lakhs , The agency filed a chil suit at Rowrkrla . Liabllity of Rs. 2488 Lakhs have been outstanding in the books apart from Security depasit of Rs 13.28 Lakhs.
A5 per the civil suit filed by the contractor | 7 % interest was claimed p,a tl realisation. The principal and interest, which comes 1o Rs, 84,17 Lakhs =5 on
JL03.2024, A4 the cade B nob yet over , the amount has been parked bn the contingant liabllity @account.

i} |b) &n agency had givan her vehitie on hite basis as per contrscl. CRPE had taken the vehicle for patrofing and wha did not release the vehicle on dus
date and ket for more cays. BSLC did not pay the hised amownt for ewtra days. Agancy wenl te court and the court gave the vardict in favaur of the agsmcy
And asked 10 pay Rs. 1.B7 Lacs . 3500 challenged the order 3t High Cowrt,Rourkela and deposited 1.00 Lac at Civil Court , Agurkels . Balance amount of A5.0.87
Lac m not pald till date as the final decision has not yet come, so the Bmaunt is kept as contingant lability

|1l The Assessee has lided appenl agaimst the evder passod by the Asseasing Officer muinly an threo issaes for the AY 2020.31;

Al Incoms Tox department ks pissed rectilicstion order u e 154 ignoring unabsorbed loss of s 07, 79.85,B5649 theugh it {8 mentioned in rectification order
h Provision for graviaity Bs §,90,56,000 has been added tasoe (0 section 30 wx well an m section $04{7).

i Employees prevedent Dund Be 63, 53,837 has been added twice in section 3641 3vn) as well as s Sectlon 438,

BALE challemged the abiove arder and went for Eling an appeal with the Ineame Tea Department. Next henring date has oot vet been received by the
ronipany, An gawount of R (46,86 Lacs (101.28 Lacs an demand smount + Bs. 45.58 Lacs. as accrued Interest) e on 31,03.2024 han been appeared in the
Incomr Tax Fortal and hence BELC has kept tie smme umnuny as concingenr Yabilry il aech time it & not Gnalisesd

{7} The Assessee has fited appesl against order paased by the learned Assessing Officer malnly on two isswes for the AY 2005-16:

a)  Expenditure of s 1,35,00,000 has bean debeted under the head of Finance Cast which is sllowed under struting asessment u/fs 143{3] but disaliowed
invaking  sectian 263 of the Income Tax Act 1961 on the ground that assesses did not pay the amount.

b} Ex-gratia paypment of Rs 5,50,000000 has been debited in profit & loss account but the assessing officer was Irvaiing sectisn 500A of income Tax Act 1961
and  aliowed one-fifth in the assessment year 2015-15 and the balance shall be deducted in equal instalments for aach of the four Immediately succeeding
previous years. That means no expenses has been disallowed im eotality.

BSLE challenged the abo'e ordes and sent for filing an appeal with the moeme Tax Department saying that-

(i} ability for finance coar has to considened for Geduction as it is charged to Frofit & Loss account.

{ui} deguction for ihe whole ex-gratia amount of Rs. 550 cr has to be considered in the same year for deduction as it was ellewed in totality

Mnut hezring date has not yet been raceived by the company, An smount of Ax 22354 Lacs (188,23 Lacs a5 demand amount + Rs. 37.31 Lacs as aterued
Imterest| a5 an 31.03.2024 bas been appeared in the Income Tax Portal and hence BSLC has ket the same amount as contingent liability 8l such time it is not

finalised
r Pl -
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b Dut of the total clatm ol Odishia Govt. towrdy demend for BPMEL Loases slongwith with Interest smounting A5, 1.80,182.17 Lakhs Kave bess shown in 5
P |B) as the cases are pending in different courts of mw.

£, Bank Guarantes iz glven to indian Buresu of Mines, OSPLE & Baltarani Irrigation Division Ry.1994.81 Lakhs (SENo C)

d. For Demand from warious statutory suthorities fowards income tay, sales tax, excise duty, custom duty, service bax, antry te and other gowernment levies
fart 23751 lakhs and R 26.21 lakhs respactivaly 35 per sl s, (L] & {F). The Company is contesting the demand with sppellste suthorities, 1t s expected that
the ultimate outcome of these pracsedings will be in favour of the Company and will not have any material aduerse offect on the Company's Fnancial positian
and resuits of operation. Site Reclalmation charges of Rs. 1480.44 Likh & shown In 51, Ma, (D],

. Pursuant ta the amendmants of the Onissa Land Refotims A, the Sub-Collestor. Champua had zerved a Notice against theLompany for aleged
unauthiriced pasiession of 10.79 acres of leasahold fard on the ground that the said land belongs to Adivasis ard based on that, the Reverue Inspector asked
OMDC to vacate the land. The Company filed an sppeal before the Addl. District Magistrate but the appeal wis not aliowed. During Agell, 1895 the Company
filed & writ application and obtained Stay Qrder from the Har'ble High Court of Orista to maintain the status quo about he possession of the land until
further order. Mo specific liabibity could be ascertained,

F. Srdmp Duty, Registration Charges, MOV & other Statutory Payment will be made at the time of executing spplementary Lease Deed after having all
Hatutory cleararces of around Rs. 19707.90 Lac for all three OMOC Leases as shown in (F) and (G).

§ OMEL haz challengad the two grdars of NCLT dated 10.3 20 befare MOLAT, New Delhl in the matter of M/'s fal Balaji industries Ltd against petition filed wufs
%ol 18, 7016 The judgement iz in OMOC Fawawr and the case is In force n Kolksta High Caurt,

Claims agalngt BSLC not sckrowleged s débt indudes:

{1} 12} Bemand of As. 93,17 Lag [Rs.93.17 Lac] in respect of Odisha Sales Tew and Odisha Entry Tax, chellenged in appeal against which 3 sum of As.57.96 Lac
[R5, 57 96 Lac| i deposited with the Sales Tax Authority None of the cased have been settled and BSLE has also fited an appication for refund of the depasited
amaunt of Rs.57 96 Lags with The Commercial Tax Department and which {5 under process. No fucther communication s recessed fowards balance ol Rs 1521
Lac (Rs 3521 Lachand hence it is consigderad a5 cantingent liabiiity Bl such tame it & setteled

{1} 12} The Governeent had notified for increase of stamp duty for executeng lease deeds @ 15% vide Indan Stamps | Qdisha Amendement ACL2013 and Aules
20723}, Accordingly the Govt. of Ogisha demanded Rs 09,42 Crote far renewal of mining lease. BSLE has filed wrlt before Ddisha High Court challenging the
afhove said notification and demmand vide W | C ) case No 15507/2013 dated 08/07/2013 which is panding till date. The Hoa'ble High Court of Odisha has
given " STAY" on the operation of above said notification which continues tll date. In the meantime 8300 has made registration of renewal of mining |ese
for two lease period |e 2000-2020 & 2020-HM0 by peying the stampduty @ 5% which is completed by the Regissration departrment and duby signed by the
Cellectar, Sundergarh 25 per details giwen below: (1) Reglstratian Ne 377 dated 30.3.7016 for the lease pariod 01.03.2000 ta 31.03.2030. The stamp duty paid
s 6,14, 28, 672 If Govt ordered to pay the balance, then B50C has to pay the differential envount of Az 12.28 Crore | 15% -5%), (2] Registration No 592 dated
30:06.2000 for the period of 01.4.2020 te 31.03.2040. The stamp duty pasd Ry 4,00,43, 578, of The Govt will ordes to pay the balence amount, then B5LC has 1o
pay the differential amount of Rs 8 28 Crore. 49 the total Gifferential amount will be Rs 2056 Crore. So f the demand persist, then BSLE will pay masimam 1o
the amount of RS 20,56 Crore - 50 we may Lake the contigent lability of Rs 70,56 Crore Instead of As 99,42 Crore

{1 | £l Providend Fund claim of B, 103.09 Lacy have been provided in the Dooks @nd contingent [iability becomes NIL as on 31.03.7024,

{1} [ 1BSLC recaived 3 notice from Oy Director of Minas Rourkels vide letter no 143 dated 15.01.2015 towards axzeds mining of Rs 8,55 06,402 for the pericd
fram 2000-01 to 3010-11, Subseguently DOM Rourkela revised the demantd snd issued & show couse nothoe vide betber no 3004 dated 15.11.2017 for Rz
0,809,654, 739/ far the same period.

B5LE has stated in his reply that thi eeliance placed on judgment passed by the Hon'bie Supreme court dated 02.08. 2017 in Comman Cause Case far Bsuing
the present show cause notice with regard (o afieged excest production with respect to Mining plan and consent to operate s mispiaced. It & submitted that
the said ugment did not deal with the isiue of sSieged excess production with respect to Mining pian and consent to operata.

DO raised e demand by consicering the highest production from EC/MP/CTO from the period from 2D00-01- to 2010-11. But a5 per Supreme Court oroer
It will be cadculated as per EC onby. Hence BSLE revised the calculation and replied the show cause notice vide letter on dated 15.12 2017 by calculating the
erieis production taking only EC quantity. Hence as per BSLE calpulation the final demand srcunt arrived for As 8,07 96,051/ whith has already been
provided In the Beoks of Atcounl snd the bakande of Bz 128180 Lacs (Rs A089.65 Lacs -Rs. 30796 Lacs) has been kept in contimgent liability. No demand/”
correfpondence in this regasd have besn (ommunicaled to BSLC since then. In view of anhance EC permissible quantity since 2010-11, there is no scope of
Increass in guantity by the company.

{1} 5] & work order was issued to the contractor on 34.10.2010 to provide security servires raund the clock at the different places of mings , After
terminataon of work order , the agancy subvnitted the final bills of Rs, 89,81 Lakhs. Rs. 11 Ladhs was paid to the agency leaving & pending amount of As. 63,81
Lakhs  The agency filed a chvil swit at Rowrkrla . Liabliity of Rs. 2488 Lakhs have been outstanding in the books apart from Security depasit of Rs 13.28 Lakhs.
A5 per the civil suit filed by the contractor | 7 % interest was claimed p,a till realization. The principal and interest, which comes 1o Rs; 84,17 Lakhs &5 on
JL03.7024. A the cade o nol yet over , the amount bas been parked bn the contingant liability accouwnt.

i} |b) &n agency had givan her vehicie on hise basis as per contrecl. CRPE had taken the vehicle for patroBng and who did not release the vehicle on dus
date and kept for more days. BSLC did not pay the hired amownt for extra days. Agency wenl te court and the court gave the vardict in favour of the agemcy
and asked u pay RS 187 Lacs . BSLC challenged the order st Hgh Court,Bourkeia and deposited 1.00 Lac at Civil Court , Aourkels - Balance amount of As.087
Lac i not paid till date a3 the final dechsion has not yet come, so the Bmaunt is kept as contingant lability.

|11l The Assessee has liled appenl aguins the erder passed by the Asseawing Officer muaénly an thren tssaes for the AY 2020031

@l Income Tom department kas passed rectification order o /e 154 ignoring unabsorbed loss of Bs 6779895569 theugh i1 is mentionsd in rectification eeder
b Provision for graviaity Bs §,90,56,000 has been added tweoe in section 30 wx well an m section $04{7).

i Empluyees provadent lund Be 65, 83837 has been sdded twice in secton 3641 jva) ns well as in Seeclan 438,

BALE challenged ihe above arder and went for Eling an appeal witk the lnsome Teaa Department, Next hearing date has oot vet been received by the
ronspany. An gauunt of Be. §45.86 Lace (101.25 Lacs as demand smount + Rs. 45,58 Lacs as aecrued Intecest) as on 31032034 han bern appeared in the
Ineomr Tax Portal and hence BELC has kept the same armouny as coningent Jabilry ol sueh vime 18 & not Graliscsd

|7} The Assessee has fited agpeal against order psased by the learned Assessing Officer malnly on two isswes for the AY 200516

a)  Eapenditure of Bs 1,35,00.000 has bean datuled under the head of Finance Cast which s allowed under seruting asessment u/fs 143(3] but dsaliowed
invaking section 263 of the Income Tax Act 1961 on the ground that assesses did not pay the amount.

b} Ex-gratia payment of Rs 5,50,00,000 has been debited in profit & loss sccount but the assessing officer was Irwlking sectian 3500A of Income Tax Act 1961
ang  aliowed one-fifth in the assessment year 2015-15 and the balance shall be deducted in equal instalments for gach of the four Immemately succeeding
previous years. That means no expenses has been disaliowed In totality.

BSLE challerged the aboie order and went for filing an appeal with the Inceme Tax Department saying that-

(i} ability for finance coat has to considened for Gecuction as it is charged to Profit & Loss account.

{ii} deduction for ihe whole ex-gratia amcunt of Rs. 550 cr has to be considered In the same year for deduction as it was alicwed in totality

Meut hegring date has not yet been received by 1he company, An @mount of R 22354 Lacs (188,23 Lacs a5 demand amount + Rs. 37.31 Lacs 2 seerued
Interest| a5 on 31.03.2024 bas been appeared In the income Tax Portal and hence BSLC has kegt the same amount as contingent liability 8l such time it is not
finahsed




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 - Segment information
38.1 Products from which reportable segments derive their revenues

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM} for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services delivered
ar provided, and In respect of the 'Limestone' and 'Dolemite’ operations, the Information is further
analysed based on the different classes of customers. The directors of the Company have chosen to
organise the Company around differences in preducts and services. No operating segments have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Company.

Specifically, the Company's reportable segments under Ind AS 108 are as follows:

a. Limestane

b. Dolomite
Limestone segment
Iron ore segment
Manganese segment
Sponge iron segment
Dolomite segment

38.2 Segment revenues and results

The following i an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from operations by reportable
Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Segment revenue Segment profit

For the year For the For the year For the
Particulars ended year ended ended year ended

31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Dolomite and limestone Segment 8,466.97 8,619.17 266.09 1,237.17
Iron ore segment 8,187.56 3,553.06 2,467.39 3,553.07
Manganese segment 40.36 0.01 12,16 -
Sponge iron segment = = = =
Unallocated 468.57 463.43 (3,355.62) (7,032.91)
Total for operations 17,163.46 12,635.67 (609.98) (2,242.67)
Other income 383.07 282.78
Profit before Tax (226.91) (1,959.89)
Tax expenses {819.37) (1,1572.75
Exceptional [tems - (B7.39)
Total profit from operations 592.46 (BB9.53)

38.3 Segment assets and liabilities

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

For the year For the

Particulars ended year ended

31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Segment assets
Dolomite and limestone Segment 5,576.70 5,694,656
lron ore segment 1,657.41 1,378.72]
Manganese segment 541.31 623.20
Sponge iron segment 344.89 344 .89
Total segment assets 8,120.31 B,041.47
Unallocated 33,514.71 38,751.05
Consolidated total assets 41,635.02 46,792.52
Segment liabilities
Dolomite and limestone Segment 18,521.29 1B8,815.90
Iron ore segment = x
Manganese segment - =
Sponge iron segment = £
Total segment liabilities 18,521.29 18,815.90
Unallocated 33,750.39 35.077.91
Consolidated total liabilities 52,271.68 57,893.81
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38. 4 OMOC - The Company has identified Iron Ore, Manganese Ore and Sponge Iron as their Business
Segment, Though [ron Ore and Manganese Ore Mines as well as Sponge Iron Plant are closed since
sept., 2010, Presently Company's source of revenue is Sale of old stocks { Iron ore & Managanese)
and Interest & accrued interest on Fixed deposits kept in Lien against Bank Guarantee & Collateral
Deposit money against Loan from Bank, The Assets have been allocated directly which are identifiable
to the respective segment and the balance is put in the un-allocated segment. The total liabilities have
been allocated to un-allocated segment.

38.5 Other segment information
Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Depreciation and Additions to non-current
amortisation assets
Particulars For the year| Forthe |Forthe year| For the

ended year ended ended year ended

31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03,2024 | 31.03.2023
Dolomite and limestone Segment 38.89 37.79 50.85 -
Iron ore segment = - - -
Manganese segment = = - -
Sponge iron segment 4,22 4.22 - -
Unallocated 483.26 218.95 Bl.67 13.62
Total for operations 526.37 260.96 132,62 13.62

38.6 Revenue from major products
The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from operations from its major products and servi

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

For the year For the
Particulars ended year ended

31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Dolomite and limestone Segment 8,466,97 8,619.17
Iron ore segment B,187.56 3,553.086
Manganese segment 40.36 0.01
Sponge iron segment - -
Unallgcated 468.57 453.43

17,163.46 12,635.67

38.7 Geographical information

The Company operates mainly in principal geographical areas-India only and the Company does not
have any other operation in any Country outside India. Accordingly, the Geagraphical infarmation will
ocnly be applicable to India.

Amount Rs, in Lakhs

Ravanz:;;r::“l:r:ternal Total Non-current assets
Particulars For the year For the For the year For the
ended year ended ended year ended
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
India 17,163.46 12,635.67 29,205.55 29,568.47
Qutside India - = - =
17,163.46 12,635.67 29,205.55 29,568.47

38.8 Information about major customers
a. The Company Is currently not operating because of the non-renewal of lease hold agreement and
mining licenses with effect from FY 2009-10, which may resume in near future. Accordingly, there are

no majer customers that can be identified to be reported for disclosure purpose as on 31st March,
2024,

b. The Company’'s major customers are Bokaro and Rourkela steel plant of Steel Authority of India
Limited (SAIL), Rashtriya Ispat Migam Limited (RINL) .
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Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 - Disclosure of any transactions with struck off Companies

g,

: Transactions of EIL with companies struck off or under liquidation (Already provided for in the books of accounts):

39.2

353.3

Name of struck off company or company under Mature of transactions |Balance Balance
liguidation with struck-off company |outstanding as on|outstanding as on
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
The Kinnison lute Mills Co.Ltd. Investments in securities 27.07 27.07
Kumardhubi Fireclay & Silica Works Ltd. Investments in securities 20.09 20.09
Kumardhubi Engg. Warks Ltd Investments in securities 0.27 0.27
Kumardhubi Fireclay & Silica Works Lid, Investments in securities 0.92 0.92
Kumardhubi Engg. Works Ltd. Investments in securities 0.04 0.04
Union Jute Co. Ltd. Investments in securities 25.06 25.06
The Burrakur Coal Co. Ltd. Investments in securities 40.87 40.87
Holman Climax Manufacturing Lud. Investments in securities 9.59 9.59
The Karanpura Development Co. Ltd. Investments in securities 5.88 5.88
Electric Supply Co. Ltd. Investments in securities 4.90 4.90
Disclesure of any transactions of OMDC with struck off Companies
Relationship
N ;
o Nature of transaction with Struck- : with the SLru::_k
Struck off i 2 Balance Outstanding | off company, if
3 off Company
Company any, to be
disclosed
Investment in Securities Nil
Receivables il
Payables Wil
Share held by stuck off company Sl
i
Other Ourstanding Balance (to be Nil
specified)
Disclosure of any transactions of BELC with struck off Companies
Relationship
Name of ; : with the Struck
Struck off Natare of trnf;l::mgn ek Shvgk Balance Dutstanding | off company, if
Company el any, to be
disclosed
Investment in Securities Mil
Receivables Nil
Payables Nil
Share held by stuck off company Mil
Other Qutstanding Balance (to be Nil
specified|




E&sterm Imvestrments Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40, Other Infomations

4.1 0MDC:
Description Statis
Mazerve [In Million Topnes) Iren- 4,08
Capacity|EC grantad) Iran- (L6 Million Tonnes per Annwim
Bining Laddi ~ Supplefentary lease deed executed on 06.07.2022 for the period from 11.10.2021 to 10,10.2041.

Forest Chearance|FC)

#Forest Clearance granted by MoEFRCC, integrated Reglonal office, Bhubaneswar on 17.08 2021 (o totsl Torest
area af 21.52 hacts. anil walig up o 10,10, 2041

Environment Clearance[EC)

» EC has been granted on 14.07,2023 by MoEF & CC , New Delhi and valid up to 13.07.2033,

Bming Plan

~Mining Plan approved by 18M on 22.07.2021 and valid up to 31 0320256,

Consent to Establisk{CTE}

» Consent (g Establish {CTE) granted by SPCB, Odisha on 15.12.2020 end valid upto 14.12. 2025,

Carned o Dperste[CTO)

» Consent to Operate [CTO) msued by SPCE, Odigha on 11.08.2023 and amended CTO (o pperate Crusher & Screen
granted on 13.12.2023.
~ Valid up to 31.03.2025,

Agtive resumption of mening operation

=14.12.2023

2. Bhadrasahi iron & Manganese Ore Mines (390.70 Ha.)

Description Status
Hezerve (in Million Tarmes) tram- 70,38, Manganese- 10,49
Capacity|EC applind) Iran- 1.8 Million Tornes par Annum, Mn-0.12 Milllan Tonnes per Araum

Mining Leaso oatensian

~ Govt. of Odisha vide order dated 06.02 2020 extended the mining lease validity period frem 01.10.2010 to
30.09.2030

Forest Ciearance|FC)

Environment Clesrance{EC}

# Forest Clearance co-tarminus is pending for payment of NPV of R5.51.25 Crore
~ OMDLC submitted ToR along with ElA & EMP report to the Stete Pollution Control Board (SPCB), Odisha on
# 1" letter from SPCE, Odisha was sent on 19,03.2021 to Collector, Keonjhar for focation of date and venue for
conducing Public Hearing (PH) and last letver fraom SPCH was sent on 18.02.2022

- Date and venue for conducting Public Hearing (FH) i awaited from Collector, Keonjhar.

*ining Plan

= Mining Plan approved by 1BM an 17.03,2020 and valid up to 31,03, 2025,

Consent to Establish|CTE)

- Application for CTE will be submitted after receiving letter from SPCB, Odishe

3. Belkundi lron & Manganese Ore Mines (1276.79 Ha.)

Ciescription

Statu

Aeserve(in Milllan Tonnes)

irom: 25,93, Mangarese- 11.73

CapacitylEC applied)

\rar- 1.8 Milllan Tornes per Anfum, vin- 0.30 millian Tonnes pEr Arnum

Mining Lease extenson

» Govt. of Odisha vide order dated 03.02.2020 extended the minkng lease validity period from 16.08 2006 to
15.08.2026.

Foreitry Clearange{FC]

Environment ClearancedEC)H

= Forest Clesrance co-terminus extensten of Belkundi mines hag been granted by MoEF & CC New Delhi on
14.08.2022 and valid up to 15.08,2026,

# The Puble Hearing which was scheduled twice earlier, once for 16.06.2023 and again for 25.10.2023, was
postponed by the office of Collector & District Magistrate, Keon]har

~ Ciate and venue for conducting Public Hearing (PH) is awaited from Collector, Keonjhar,

Mining Flan

~ Mining Plan approved by 1BM on 29.01.2021 and valid up to 31.03.2026,

Cordent 10 Establish{CTE)

~ Prasentation made before SPCH, Odisha on 25.02.2021 for obtaining CTE.

BPMEL LEASES :

OMDC HAD BEEM OPERTING BPMEL LEASES BY VIRTUE OF POWER OF ATTORNEY. MINING RICHTS OF BPMEL LEASES ARE SUBJUDICE. THE
1. Kolha-Aoida Iron & Manganese Ore Mines (254,952 Ha.)

Description

Status.

Renewal of Minmg Lease

The 3rd RML applicabon (15081998 to 14 08.2016) was rejected by Govt. of Odisha on 16.11.2006

Date of Expiry af 27 AWML/ Deteof fling of 3™
KR Application

14.08. 1996 / 14.07.1995

Wires operated up to (noer Deemed
Renewal|

16.11.2006

Ervironment Clearance| EC]

EC was ghtained on 23.07.2012 for 3 MTPA Iron ore & 0.24 MTPA Manganese gre,

Forest Clearanga(FC]

Mot Avallable

Approved Mining Pan

Mot available

Consant to Extablish (CTE)

Mol availabla

Canseni to Operate (CTO}

Mot available

2. Ralki Manganese Ore Mines (266,77 Ha.|




Cescription Status
fenewal of Mining Lusse The Zrd RML application (01.10.1994 to 30.09.2014) was refected by Govt. of Ddishs on 24,08, 20086,
Drate of Eupiry af 2™ AML / Date of Mling 4™ |30.09.1994/ 05.09,2013
AML_Application
Mines operpted up e |under Deemed 24,08, 2008
Henewal)
Environmart Clessance(EC] EL was obtained on 11.09.2013 for 0.24 MTPA Manganese ora.
Fateil Chearance|#C} Mok available -
Approwvad Mingng Pan Not available
Consert to Extablish |CTE) Nob avallable
Cansant 1o Dparate |CT0) Mot available
3. Thakurani Iren & Manganese Ore Mines (1546.55 Ha,)
Description Status
Rengwal of Mining Lease 3rd RML from 01.10.2004 to 30,09, 2024 is pending.
Date of Eaplry of 7™ RML / Bate of filing of 37} 30.05,2004 / 27.08.2003
AML Apglication
Mines operated up to |ursler 08.12,2009
Dwemed Reavwal]
Envircnmenrt Clesrance(EC] Mot Bvailable
Fosest ClearanceEC] Mot availabla
Appravad Minkng Plan Mol available
Conyent to Estoblish {TTE) Mot avallable
Cansert to Dporate [CTO) Mot avallable

440.1.2 - D2t information

2] Thare g ne dues payable 1o Mioo and Small Entorprsos as dedinsd i the Micna, Sl and Medium Enterprises Davalopmens Act, 2006 which have been determined o the sxtent juch oarties
Fave been identiied an the basis of information avaitable with the Comaenyg

b} Un-autharized arcupation of some of The Guarters has been made by contractor's gmployess in mines, Company is eonsidering to taie necessary action INcuBiFg gl course wherovar
mecessary to take the ownesshipof ihe guarters

cf Tha ragisiration of the Bullding of the company 4t Kolkata and in Scope Comalex, Mew delhl i§ yer b6 be completed, The provision of 8584, 03 lakhs has Dean made far ragistration of buliding.
However, furthes paymenl will e made 8t the time of Registration a5 par actual

diAs per the bncerstanding with the empsayees, electricity consumed By them in the stcommodstion pravided to them wauld be free of cost, herce any recovery |s not mads fram emgloyess,

40.1.3 The accounts have been preparad on Going Concern Badis. The Baglabury Iran Mines started operating frorm 14,12.2023, The Company & constantly foflowing up for
renewal af mining Ieases far remaining two mines &, Belhund and Bhadrasal Mines

44, 1.4 Confirmation af balances in respect of advances, receivables etc. ane sent 60 quarterly basis and annualty. The sffect of any adjustment, as may be required, on
reconcHlation with the confirmation of the partrés will be done in future yvears, after recept of confirmation.

40,1.5 The affective date for @otption of Ind-AS 116 & annual pericd beginning on ar after April 1, 2319, From the clessfication of applicability, in respect of OMDC, Tnd-&5
11& can not be made applicable.

40,2 - BELC - Additonal motes to Acogunts

40.2.1 - The Company cwned freencid land of 504,525 Hectres snd feaienaid lad of 466,198 Hectres (Govt Land| In Block-KI at Birmitrapar s surface right arsa which ls'571 131 Hectres and
walance land of base s 221,568 Hectras (Private tenanted land, pablic road, NH, Temale stc} in Slock -X1 at birmitrapur, Campany has aurchased 0,354 Hectres of land awtside lease hold area.
Honce tota| Minisg Lease ares i 793,043 Hectres of Land {1052 79+466.196+2 21 568] Ir Block-Ki o Birmilragur. &s per mining saln the propopsed mires sres would be 2B0.36 hectres foe
pericd upla 31052005 , howewer it has already manad 271.1% haciare of land 1l Marcn 2024, bs per the Mineral Conservation and Development Rules 2017, the Comparny nas glven financial
antance in farm of Bank Guarantes of R84 1,09 Lacs in regasd 1o Progressive Mine Closure Flan - The Company had arowided for Pragesyive Mine Closue Plan for A 1401.81 Lacs 1l Maesch 2025

The itferential sdomanal amount of Ry 560072 Lacs 15 yet 1o be submitted. Liahility of Rz 56.07 Lacs has baan recogrised towarsi regrassaj of mined areas as por the clause of the suppfmentary
maue desd

4012 - Provsion for FMCP: In terma of requiremants of Rule 24 to 17 8 MCDI, 2047, the companty s requined £o recognize a Habilty for Fnal mine closure plan, However, the time for praparation

st submission af FAACF 5 707 yeT dus and henes the amswnt of liabdity could not be cetermined at the prosent Juncure. Hence, The llabdity 1 ot recagniced in the bagks of account and dus 1a
the fact that the amounis Involued s not matensl

40.2.3 - Supreme Lourt Jucgemient: The Hor'bie Supreme Court = s Corstitution Bench of nine judgas prongunced on July 25, 2024 snd Suguss 38, 2024 that the Mines and #nerals
|Dervstapment and Repration] hce, 1957 will not derude the State Governmant of their power 1o levy tax o maneral rights and held trat ta could be wied by e State Government an all
ARG TR made by mining companies and fease hoiders sftar &peil 1, 2005

Howeewer, The company has 5o far rot received @ny demasds/natices rem concermed State Govt / agencies In this regare. The maragement Fes assessed the impficatiors of Hon'bie Suprems

Court’s judgmans’ datad J5tk Juy, 2024 and 141h Auguse, 1074 and beliéves that the finandal impacs, If develved, on the comasny will nat be material, Accordingly, na Gability has bean
recognized in the books of actoun

£0.1.4 - The Company burtart 1o sopfaval of Envronmental Cearance from competent authority les enhanoement of its annual produetian eapacity from 0,96 MTPA ta 5.26 MTPA, has recered a

10ta) oLty plen of A 35030 lac towaros cast of implementation of e specific wild lIfe consenation, The Comgpany, as & matter of prutence has made necessary provision in the books of actourt
scoarcngly




(BLLE TTRe Company |5 nat regutar in repaying arincipal amaunt of term iaan ard interest thereon to it hoiding company Eastern inyestmants Lid (E1L). The Company was accommedated with the
leran 1o tide porer financial criss due to closure of the manas fos some perlod duting 2011-12. As per the teems, princigal Is repiysble after one year from she msumation of mining operations in 120
equal manthéy instalments, Simple inenest on the loan i payable on monthly bass at ABI interest rate preveding on The dete of dishursoment for the year of disbursement snd theseafter for
sulitenuent yeark at the prevailing R8I intenest rate. The Inan was disburied during 2013-13.on difterent dates aggregating to Rs 1375 Larard alsa n April 2043 for M3 125 kar. E¥fectivaly prine ipal
repayment falis dus from Aped 2053 10 resgect dishursements during 2012.33 and from May 2013 for the disburssment in Apsil 2013

The Cormpany @ 101 iR & pdsition to pyy any manthly instailment towands reasyent of princigal due te finandal crisls. Aggregate ameunt af sriacipal Faling due for paymant but renaining unpaid
a5 at the year-end I 831500 Lac . The Company could not repay Interest Sirce Jure 2013, The holding company EIL 3 Non Banking Financisl Company decared the srtne ican a5 Mon Perfarming
Al 43 on Btk Sep 3304 and stopped recognizieg intarest seame thereon frorm October 2014 The Company has regussied EIL 18 waiee the loan amaunt as wall ag Intanest Thereon In view of
poar Francisl statos of the comaany. Thie amou et i selaul towaris repayment of interest as at the yaar-ond is Bs, 105370 Lat (As. 955,93 Lac). Confirmation of the above balarces of loan &

nterest from EIL are also ciotained, =

016 As per Trpertite Mermarandum of Sextlernent dated 30nh March 2009 with Recognised Warkmer's Union and Hegs Labaur Comimiss . the wiage revision s dus fram Ty Lanuary
201Z However, in wew of Office Memorandum of Department af Public Enterprise Nos.2{ 111/ %6-DPLWC]-5L-1 dated I 1th Fabruary 2004 and 24 70,/08-DPE{WE) dated T6ch Moversaer 1008 the
Comaany |4 barred to camy out wage revisan due 10 (ecurTing losses, negative networth and inabiisy to pay ncremental wages oul of It own sources. In wiew of the above, ng prevision on
sccount of pay revision has baen mage (f the acoounte The possibsling of wiage revision being remate, the same is nat ronsidered even s Contingens Liabiliny,

4027 Irpit Taa Creci of R 1461.57 Lacs | Prenvious Year A5 1426.10 Lecs| is lying in the books a5 gther corrent aysets . The company his cotained legal cainion, accordingly the wivale of 1T i
ither giagibde for acjustment agairat ot taa liabdity or for refund in the ordinary course of business.

a0 7.8 Camparsy s subject 1o secreterial sudit and the management 1s responsible far vafious compliances under the Compardes Act and the rules framad there under snd all the apalicabls SEB
tomaliances  Any additional fees/penalties payable for non compiiances are accour=d for a5 and when regulred.

42,8 Balance whh some of the perties ane subpect to confemation and reconsifatar. The Management does not expect ary material ctference aMecting the clrrent year's finencal satements
thue ta the samse The company s strengthening s balance confirmation procedients | however en scruting of accounts | provision and aSowances have bepn mads in SCCOUNKS WhEreEVEr neceisary

40210 The management has represented that, tothe best of s knowledge and bafied, pa furds keve Been sdvarcec af loaned or invested {aither from borrowed Tunds or share gremiumor any
ther sources ar king of funcs| by the Company to or in any other parsonis) or entity(les), inciuding foreign entities. [*Intermadiaries™), with the understasging. whether recorded n whting or
otherwize, that the ntarmadiary shall, whather, directly o indirectly, lend o irwest in other persans or entities identifind in ary mannes whatsoever by o on behalf of the Camgany (“Uitimats
Bepneficiarios”) or grgvise any guadaEntes, seourity ar the tke an behed of the Ultimate Berefclaries.

A0.2.11 The management nas represented that, to the best of its krowledge and belted, ra furds have bean recsived by the Company fram any person(s) ar entitylies), ingugding Roreign entitles
["Funding Part=4"], with five ursderytanding, whethsr recorded bn writing or othaenstss, that the Company shall, whether, directly ar indivectly, land o ireast in other TS 07 eslities identified in
vy manset whatidever by o on behalf of the Furding Parry (“Ultimate Banafitiaries") or prowide any guarantes, setority of the llka on behall of the Uiimate Baneficlaries.

40,231 The Company Mas substantal carrsd forwand losses snd unsbsarbes deareciation undar the Income Tax Act, 1961 and wtcordingly Deferrec Tax Asser of s 166820 Lacs [preveous year Rs
167403 Lac) has arisen b &n 3150 March 2024 and |t does not inchude the atfect of Grawity and Leave encashrent, However, as per IND A45-12 and In consideration of prudence, the Deferred Tax
Asyet has mod been recogrised i the financial stataments swing 1o uncertainty of the avallability of sufficient taxable income in taturs against wiich such Disfersd Tax Assets can be realised.
Dederrec Tav Bssety on Dearecation for the year ended 3130 March 2004 is hereunder Depreciation an per incame Tas Act A3, 73,81 Lacs #nd Depreciation as per Company's Ac7 Fs, 3880 L,
Tiring Dxfference baing Ry |34 93] Lacs 3nd Tax Impoct on the same Rs. (5.83) Lacs. Mot Defarred Tax Assets a5 ar 31.03.2024 Rs. 1668 20 Lacs.

40.2.13 The Company-nas made a profit of Re332.55 Lacs Defoes 1 tor the year ended 3lst March'2024 and accumulatod 1055 as on 310 Mareh' 20245 Rs 2567333 Laed wihich |2 in axczs of tha
entire Net Warth of tne Campany. Tha comaany has Miesied Lhe going conoen assummtion in preparing the financiad siatements kasping in view the recent mpravements in the perlormance of
tha company and expected pasitive praspects in huture. The Management espects that posithe cash flow will e generated from ooerations which wosld enable the comaany b cantinue 1o
aperale a5 & going toncern during the forthcomeng L1 months pericd. Accosdingly, these financia® statements have been prepared aon golng concem basks.

402 14 Ciber additional reguiastary infformations am not applcable 10 the company,
407 15 SEGMENT- Ore commen nomenclature used for both Dolome snd Limsstone * carsonate Racis This term neflects that both minerals are composed primardy of Caroonee minerals with

Lim#ilore being orecaminently composed of calote | caklum carbonate) and Dolamie beirg composed of the mineral dofomite | caldlum magencium carbanate), The cempany produces Dolomite
and Limestone wnich belangs toa singie segmany pragues  carbanane Mi I5" and sales i 1o the domestic market as such segment reporiing wnder Ind A3 1§ nol reguired.

#].2. 16 Provesion s doubthul debton: Trade Recsrdatile shown at Note No 133 inchuds amourts outstanding for the mone than ame year-of B, 9573 Lacs | howeves, i Provssiar Bas been

recogalted in the books of account owing so the fact that the company (5 taking measures by gersuting with relevant parties 1o recover these amounts and most of These smoums ke recelvables
from other PaLs

&2 17 Prewious yoar's fIgures hauw bean me-groupen and 58 @TANEED WRETEVET neCesSarY,
40,118 Corporate Social Responsibity
A pee Section 135 of the Companies fct, 1013, a compary, mestmy the sopicability threshoid, needs (o spend 31 least 7% of Its sverage rel profit far the immadiatatly preceding three Rrancial

ety in tofaorate socal responsillity (CR) activibies. The areas for CSR artivities are eradscation af hunger and mainutrition, promaticg education, art and tulturs, healthcare, gestimute cass snd
fehabiltation, ervironmens sustanability, gisaster refied, COVID-19 reliel amd rered develooment projects.

Particulars

() Amount requined to be spent by the compay 1786
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